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VISION :VISION :VISION :

• To become a major state of the art technology Pipeline company for 
Transpor�ng Petroleum Products in Karnataka State & beyond, maintaining 
highest standards of Quality in execu�on, opera�on & Maintenance of Pipe 
line system with op�mum care & commitment for safety, health, 
environment, employee involvement & development.

MISSION :MISSION :MISSION :

• To achieve interna�onal standards of excellence in all respect of petroleum 
products transporta�on business through Pipeline system with focus on 
customer delight through delivery of quality products, services & cost 
reduc�on.

• To maximize crea�on of wealth, value and sa�sfac�on to the stakeholders.

• To a�ain leadership in developing, adop�ng, absorbing state of the art new 
Technology for compe��ve advantage  

• To provide technology, consultancy, training in the field of pipeline 
transporta�on system for petroleum products & Telecom system.

• To develop and provide a high technology op�cal fiber based 
telecommunica�on system network in Karnataka State and neighboring 
states.

• To cherish a culture of par�cipa�on and bring in novel�es for employee 
growth, development and contribu�on.

QUALITY POLICY QUALITY POLICY QUALITY POLICY 

• To establish & maintain high standard of Quality systems in Pipeline 
construc�on, opera�on & Maintenance of Pipe line system to deliver 
Quality services and products to its customers to achieve customer 
sa�sfac�on and delight.

INTEGRATED MANAGEMENT SYSTEM POLICYINTEGRATED MANAGEMENT SYSTEM POLICYINTEGRATED MANAGEMENT SYSTEM POLICY

Petronet MHB Ltd., commits to con�nual improvement and 

Maintain opera�onal excellence through,

Hazard, ill health, injury and Pollu�on preven�on,

By employee involvement and complying with, 

Legal and other requirements & Customer expecta�ons.
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Notice of 25th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Petronet MHB 
Limited (PMHBL or Company) will be held on Friday, 22nd September 2023 at 11 AM (IST) through Video 
Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

 1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the company for the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2023 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon 
and the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

 2. To appoint a director in place of Sri Subodh Batra (DIN: 09364934), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 3. To appoint a director in place of Sri Anuj Kumar Jain (DIN: 09560713), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 4. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company for fixing the remuneration of the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company as appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for auditing 
the accounts of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 and in this regard to consider and if 
thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s) the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

  "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Board of Directors of the Company be & are hereby authorised to fix remuneration & other 
terms & conditions including reimbursement of out of pocket expenses in connection with Statutory 
Audit Work of the Statutory Auditor as appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for 
Statutory Audit of the Accounts of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24”

Special business

 5. To appoint Sri Pankaj Kumar (DIN: 09252235) as Director of the Company and in this regard to 
consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s) the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and 161 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, and any further amendments thereto from time to time (including any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and also the relevant 
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, Sri Pankaj Kumar (DIN: 09252235), who 
was appointed as Additional Director and the Chairman by the Board of Directors of the Company 
with effect from 01.06.2023 in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Articles of 
Association of the Company and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting or 
the last date on which the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2022-23 should have been 
held, whichever is earlier,  and the Company having received a notice in writing under Section 160 
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of the Companies Act, 2013 from Sri Pankaj Kumar, proposing his candidature for the office of 
Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

 6. To appoint Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath (DIN:10092758) as Director of the Company and 
in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and 161 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, and any further amendments thereto from time to time (including any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and also the relevant 
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath 
(DIN: 10092758 ), who was appointed as Additional Director by the Board of Directors of the 
Company with effect from 29.03.2023 in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act 2013 and the 
Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General 
Meeting or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2022-23 
should have been held whichever is earlier, and the Company having received a notice in writing 
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath, 
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

 7. To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending March 31, 2024 and, in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if 
any of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and any 
further amendments thereto from time to time (including any statutory modifications(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s Murthy & Co. 
LLP, Cost Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the 
cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2024, amounting to Rs. 
50,000/- (Rs. Fifty thousand only) plus applicable taxes plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred for the Audit at actuals, be and is hereby ratified and approved.”

       By order of the Board of Directors 
          For Petronet MHB Limited
      

                (Sachin Jayaswal)
                           Company Secretary
                  Membership no. ACS 18835

Regd. Office : Corporate Miller, 2nd Floor, Block B, 
   332/1, Thimmaiah Road, Vasanth Nagar, 
   Bengaluru, 560052 
Date  :  25.08.2023
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NOTES:

1. Considering the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its 
General Circular no. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, General Circular 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 
13, 2021, General Circular no. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and General Circular No. 10/2022 and 
General Circular No. 11/2022, dated December 28, 2022 and all other relevant circulars issued from 
time to time (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), permitted convening the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) through Video Conference (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the 
physical presence of members at a common venue. Hence, in accordance with the MCA Circulars 
and the Companies Act, 2013, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. 

2. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at Corporate Miller, 
2nd Floor, Block B, 332/1, Thimmaiah Road, Vasanth Nagar, Bengaluru 560052. 

3. As per provisions of clause 3.B.IV of the General Circular no. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, the 
matter of special business as appearing at item nos. 5 to 7 of the accompanying notice are 
concerned unavoidable by the Board and hence forming part of this notice. 

4. A statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
relating to special business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto. 

5. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on 
his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. However, since the AGM is 
being held in accordance with the Circulars through VC, the facility for appointment of proxies by the 
members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy form and Attendance slip are not 
annexed herewith. 

6. Since the AGM will be held through VC in accordance with the MCA Circulars, the route map of the 
venue of the meeting is not annexed hereto.

7. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the 
AGM as per section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

8. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the 
meeting are requested to send authorization letter to the Company.

9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are 
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by 
the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for 
electronic inspection without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to 
the date of AGM, Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 
sachinjayaswal@petronetmhbl.com. 

10. Members are requested to address all correspondence to the Company Secretary, Petronet MHB 
Limited, Corporate Miller, 2nd Floor, Block B, 332/1, Thimmaiah Road, Vasanth Nagar, Bengaluru, 
560052 and email id sachinjayaswal@petronetmhbl.com. 

11. Members who need technical assistance before or during the AGM, can contact 
allan@petronetmhbl.com or call on 08095220387. Kindly quote your name, DP ID-Client ID / Folio 
no.

12. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the Annual Report 2022-23 and the Notice of the 25th AGM 
are being sent only through electronic mode to all the members whose email addresses are 
registered with the Company / depository participant. 

13. Members may also note that the Notice of the 25th AGM and the Annual Report 2022-23 will also be 
available on the Company’s website link, https://www.petronetmhbl.com/financial-aids/

14. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 
names will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

15. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode who have not registered their e-mail addresses 
with their Depository Participant(s) are requested to register / update their email addresses with the 
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Depository Participant(s) with whom they maintain their demat accounts.  The Registrar & Transfer 
agent of the Company is Integrated Registry Management Services Pvt. Ltd., CIN: 
U74900TN2015PTC101466, #30, Ramana Residency, 4th Cross, Sampige Road, Malleswaram, 
Bangalore - 560 003. Phone No.: 080 2346 0815 to 818 Fax No.: 080 2346 0819 Email ID: 
alpha123information@gmail.com, bangaloreAccounts@integratedindia.in

16. Members holding shares in dematerialised & in physical mode, who have not registered / updated 
their email addresses with the Company, are requested to register / update the same by writing to 
the Company with details of folio number and attaching a self-attested copy of PAN card at 
sachinjayaswal@petronetmhbl.com.

17. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the 
AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before 15th September 2023 to email id  
sachinjayaswal@petronetmhbl.com.

18. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open for inspection by the 
members at the Registered office of the Company on all working days i.e. Monday to Friday 
between 10.30AM and 12.30 PM upto the date of the Annual General Meeting or electronically 
during the AGM. 

19. The details of the Director retiring by rotation and proposed for reappointment is enclosed as 
Annexure to this notice. Sri Ramamurthi Sridhar (DIN 06749266), Director, nominated by HPCL 
who in normal course would have been considered for rotation as a director at the next AGM, is 
superannuating from HPCL on 31.08.2023 and would not be on the Board as a director at the next 
AGM scheduled in Sep. 2023. Hence as per the next order of rotation, with concurrence of the 
Board, in place of Sri Ramamurthi Sridhar, Sri Anuj Kumar Jain (DIN 09560713), Director will retire 
by rotation and being eligible, seek reappointment.

20. Guidelines for participation through VC/OAVM. 

 i. Members may note that the 25th AGM of the Company will be convened through VC in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the MCA 
Circulars. The facility to attend the meeting through VC will be provided by the Company. 
Members may access the same at 

         https://petronetmhbl.webex.com/petronetmhbl/j.php?MTID=m30c26005a428a0729df7de3eae7eaf96

 ii. Members present in the AGM through VC can vote by way of show of hands during the AGM. 

 iii. In case a poll is demanded, Chairman shall follow the procedure provided in Section 109 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The Members may vote by sending an e-mail 
from their registered email id to the designated e-mail id: pmhblagmpoll@petronetmhbl.com  stating 
their assent/ dissent. 

 iv. The facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM will be opened 60 minutes before the 
scheduled start-time of the AGM.

 v. Members can participate in the AGM through their desktops / smartphones / laptops etc. 
However, for better experience and smooth participation, it is advisable to join the meeting 
through desktops / laptops with high-speed internet connectivity. 

 vi. Please note that participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets, or through laptops via 
mobile hotspot may experience audio / video loss due to fluctuation in their respective 
networks. 

 vii. Steps to join the AGM through VC by desktop/ laptop

  a) Click the link given for the VC or join through e mail invite 

  b) select “Join from your browser”. You can join through Google chrome or Firefox or safari 
or Microsoft edge. 

  c) Allow https://petronetmhbl.webex.com to set cookies in your browser and to open the 
petronetmhbl.webex.com. 

  d) Use computer for audio and start video and then “join meeting”
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  e) Similar process can be adopted for joining through tablet/ mobile.

21. Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors of the Company (being 
a Government Company) are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) 
and in pursuance to Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, their remuneration is to be fixed by the 
Company in the Annual General Meeting or in such manner as the Company in general meeting 
may determine. In this regard, members may authorize the Board to fix remuneration payable to 
Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2023-24.

 The Members of the Company, at the 24th AGM held on 23.09.2022, authorized the Board of 
Directors to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors appointed for the financial year 2022-23 by 
the C&AG. Accordingly, the Board of Directors fixed remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000/- for the Statutory 
Auditors for the financial year 2022-23 plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of actual traveling 
and out of pocket expenses. 

 The Board of Directors have recommended authorizing the Board of Directors of the Company for 
fixation of remuneration of Statutory Auditors as appointed by C&AG for auditing the Annual 
Accounts of the Company for the year 2023-24, for approval of shareholders. 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 

Item no. 5: 

Sri Pankaj Kumar was appointed as Additional Director and Chairman with effect from 01.06.2023, 
nominated by Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC), in accordance with Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. 

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the above Director holds office up to the date of the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting for financial year 
2022-23 should have been held, Whichever is earlier. In this regard, the Company has received a request 
in writing from Sri Pankaj Kumar, proposing his candidature for appointment as Director in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 160 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company feels that the 
presence of Sri Pankaj Kumar on the Board is desirable and would be beneficial to the company and have 
recommended his appointment as a Director of the Company.

Relevant documents in respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the Registered 
office of the company on all working days between 10.30AM and 12.30 PM upto the date of the Annual 
General Meeting or electronically during the AGM.

None of the other Directors/KMP of the Company/their relatives except Sri Pankaj Kumar are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set out in item no. 5 of the notice for approval of the 
shareholders.

Item no. 6: 

Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath was appointed as Additional Director with effect from 29.03.2023 
nominated by Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC), in accordance with Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. 

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the above Director holds office up to the date of the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting for financial year 
2022-23 should have been held, Whichever is earlier In this regard, the Company has received a request in 
writing from Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath, proposing his candidature for appointment as Director in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 160 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company feels that the 
presence of Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath on the Board is desirable and would be beneficial to the 
company and have recommended his appointment as a Director of the Company.

Relevant documents in respect of the above item are open for inspection by the members at the 
Registered office of the company on all working days between 10.30 AM and 12.30 PM upto the date of the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) or electronically during the AGM.

None of the other Directors/KMP of the Company/their relatives except Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad 
Kamath are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item 
no. 6 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set out in item no. 6 of the notice for approval of the 
shareholders.

Details of Directors being appointed/reappointed as required under the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 and Secretarial Standard 2 (SS 2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI):

Name of the Director Sri Pankaj Kumar Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath

DIN 09252235 10092758

Category of Director Non - Executive - Chairman Non – Executive - Director

Date of Birth 30.06.1966 17.11.1967

Age 57 years 56 years

Date of first Appointment 01.06.2023 29.03.2023
on the Board

Qualification Bachelor’s degree in  B.E. in Chemical Engineering
 Chemical Engineering

Experience 34 years 30 years

Details of Experience As per note 1 As per note 2

Directorship held in  
other Companies

1 .  O i l  a n d  N a t u r a l  G a s 
Corporation Limited.  (Whole 
time Director – Director – 
Production)

He is not a director in any other Company.

2 .  H indus tan  Pe t ro leum  
Corporation Limited  (Govt. 
nominee Director)

3. ONGC Petro Additions 
Limited (Nominee Director)

4. Pawan Hans Limited 
(Nominee Director)  

Membership of  
Committee

He is not part of any 
Committee of the Company.  He is a member of Corporate Social

He is a member of Audit 
Committee of Oil and Natural  
Gas Corporation Limited.

Responsibility Committee and 
Nomination &  Remuneration 
Committee of the Company.
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Note 1: 
stSri Pankaj Kumar has taken over as Chairman of Petronet MHB Limited on 01  June 2023, nominated by 

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation (ONGC). He is Director (Production) of ONGC. 

Sri Kumar is a thorough Oil & Gas industry professional with more than 34 years of experience across 
ONGC's business functions varying from Operations Management of Offshore and Onshore fields, Well 
Engineering, Joint Venture Management, Corporate Strategic Management and Asset Management.

During this period, he has held key positions as Chief of Corporate Strategy & Planning group of ONGC 
and Asset Manager of Cambay Asset and Ahmedabad Assets. Sustainable production enhancement from 
mature fields of Ahmedabad & Cambay is another testimony to his impeccable Asset & Project 
Management skills.

He is known for his visionary approach and dynamic decision making with excellent performance records. 
During his stint in Joint Venture (JV) Operations Group, Shri Kumar was instrumental in exceptional 
turnaround of CB-OS/2 Offshore JV block by making it profitable with almost 100% increase in production 
and delivering complex offshore projects in Panna-Mukta & Tapti block, on-time and within allocated 
budget. Sri Kumar's immense contribution in formulation of ONGC's Long Term Growth Strategy: Energy 
Strategy 2040 as Chief Corporate Strategy & Planning is remarkable.

During his tenure as Asset Manager of the largest onshore Asset of ONGC at Ahmedabad, Country faced 
worst ever Pandemic and the lock down situation. Under his dynamic leadership during severe lock-down 
conditions Asset having 67 installations continued operations on round the clock basis and maintained 
production

He holds a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering from University of Roorkee (now IIT Roorkee) and 
Master's degree in Process Engineering from IIT Delhi. He completed Advance Management Program at 
IIM, Bengaluru and Leadership Development Program at IIM, Calcutta.

Note 2: 

Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath is appointed a additional director of the Company with effect from 
29.03.2023, nominated by ONGC. Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath aged about 55 year is B E in 
Chemical Engineering (Year 1989) & PGDM (Year 1992). Currently he is in Executive Director (Refinery) 

He is a member of 
Nomination & Remuneration 
Conutiue of ONGC Petro 
Additions Limited. 

No. of Shares held  in 
the Company

Terms and conditions 
of appointment

He is not holding any shares 
in the Company.

He will be liable for retirement 
by rotation. He will be a non-
executive director and no 
remuneration is payable by the 
Company to him

He is not holding any shares in the 
Company.

He will be liable for retirement by 
rotation. He will be a non-executive 
director and no remuneration is 
payable by the Company  to him.

Relationship between 
Directors inter- Se

There is  no re lat ionship 
between the Directors inter se.

There is no relationship between the 
Directors inter se.

Attendance at Board meeting: For FY 2022-23 Sri Pankaj Kumar and Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad 
Kamath were not eligible to attend any Board meeting. For FY 2023-24 till the date of this notice, Sri Pankaj 
Kumar was eligible to attend two Board meetings and he attended both the Board meetings. For FY 2023-
24, till the date of this notice, Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath was eligible to attend four Board 
meetings and he attended all the four Board meetings.
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in MRPL. He is responsible Refinery operations, maintenance & Technical services including production 
planning. He is focused on achieving refinery operational excellence and reducing energy demand, 
improving reliability and driving the digitalization through AI / ML techniques to improve process 
productivity, reliability improvement among others for MRPL.  

He has a rich and varied professional exposure across entire spectrum of petroleum functions & having 
experience of 30 plus years. He has wide experience in Project conceptualization, process engineering, 
production planning and operations. He has worked in various key positions in Technical Services 
overseeing Production planning, Process Engineering, Quality Control, R&D, Engineering and Inspection 
along with operations and projects departments.  

In his capacity as head of Technical Services he has been the driving force for conceptualization of BSVI 
process units and allied facilities. The said BSVI facilities were successfully commissioned and operated 
under his stewardship of Technical Services.  R&D team won the first innovation award during his stint as 
Technical Services head on patented AI/ML-first principle algorithm commercialized in Captive Power 
Plant and Polypropylene units. 

Item no. 7: 

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, approved the 
appointment of M/s Murthy & Co. LLP as Cost Auditor at a remuneration of Rs.50,000/- (Rs. Fifty thousand 
only) plus applicable taxes plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred for the Audit at actuals 
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2024. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the 
Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, have to be ratified by the members of the 
Company. The Board, therefore, recommend the ordinary resolution for approval by the members.  

Relevant documents in respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the Registered 
office of the company on all working days between 10.30AM and 12.30 PM upto the date of the Annual 
General Meeting or electronically during the AGM.

None of the Directors/KMP of the Company/their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 7 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out at item no. 7 for approval by the members. 

        By order of the Board of Directors 

        For Petronet MHB Limited

      

             (Sachin Jayaswal)

                                       Company Secretary

                   Membership no. ACS 18835
ndRegd. Office :  Corporate Miller, 2  Floor, Block B,

   332/1, Thimmaiah Road, Vasanth Nagar, 

        Bengaluru, 560052  

Date  : 25.08.2023



th
Annexure to the Notice of the 25  AGM of Petronet MHB Limited

thDetails of the director seeking re-appointment at the 25  Annual General Meeting (pursuant to secretarial 
standard 2 (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) 

Name of the Director� Sri Subodh Batra� Sri Anuj Kumar Jain

DIN� 09364934� 09560713

Category of Director� Non-Executive - Director� Non-Executive - Director

Date of Birth� 10.08.1966� 19.06.1967

Age� 57 years� 56 years

Date of first Appointment � 01.04.2022� 05.04.2022
on the Board

Qualification� B. Tech (Civil Engineering)� B.Sc. (Engineering – Electrical)

Experience� 36 years� 35 years

Details of Experience� Note 2� Note 3

Directorship held in � Hindustan Colas Private � 1. South Asia LPG Company
other Companies� Limited�      Private Ltd.
� � 2. IHB Limited
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Membership of  

Committee

He is Chairman of the CSR �
Committee of the Company.�He is 

member of Audit  Committee of 

Hindustan Colas Private Limited.�    

He is a member of Audit Committee 

and Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee of the Company.

No. of Shares held  in 

the Company

He is not holding any shares in 

the Company.

5 Equity Shares, jointly with HPCL

Terms and conditions  

of appointment

He is due for retirement by 
rotation at the ensuing AGM. 
Hence, he is being re-appointed 
in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. No remuneration is payable 
by the Company to him.  �  

He is due for retirement by rotation at 
the ensuing AGM. Hence, he is being 
re-appointed in compliance with the 
a p p l i c a b l e  p r o v i s i o n s  o f  t h e 
C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  2 0 1 3 .  N o 
remuneration is payable by the 
Company to him. 

Relationship between 

Directors inter- Se

There is no relationship  

between the Directors inter se.

There is no relationship  between the 

Directors inter se.



Note 1: For other details such as the number of meetings of the Board / Committee attended by the above 

directors during the year FY 2022-23, please refer to the Board Report, which is a part of the Annual 

Report.

Note 2: Sri Subodh Batra is Executive Director – Industrial & Consumers, Direct Sales SBU, in Hindustan 
stPetroleum Corporation Limited (a Maharatna Company) since October 1 , 2021.  Prior to this 

assignment, he was Executive Director – Supply, Operations & Distribution SBU, responsible for end-to-

end product sourcing, inventory management, infrastructure planning, biofuels, logistics, operations and 

safety at all POL depots and terminals across the country.  As Head of Supply, Operations and 

Distribution, he was instrumental in taking a number of initiatives aimed at cost optimization and digital 

interventions at all the operating locations.

Sri Subodh Batra has rich and varied professional experience across the entire spectrum of petroleum 

functions and having an experience of more than 36 years.  He is known for his participative leadership 

style and believes in leading his teams from the front and consistently delivering high performance 

against all odds. During his career he has led large teams in all marketing functions and held leadership 

positions including Head – Retail, North Zone, Head – Retail, North Central Zone and Retail Regional 

Manager – Meerut.

Note 3: Sri Anuj Kumar Jain is the Executive Director - LPG I/C and additional charge of Pipelines, 

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited, a 'Maharatna' Company. He is an Electrical Engineer and he 

joined Hindustan Petroleum in 1988. He has rich and varied professional exposure of over 33 years in 

HPCL in downstream petroleum marketing in Retail Sales, LPG sales & marketing, Pipeline projects, and 

Engineering & Projects. He is well known for his expertise in handling cross-country pipeline projects, 

building LPG bottling Plants, Marketing terminals, Lube blending plants, developing Tank Wagon 

facilities. 

Sri Anuj Kumar Jain has always focused on enhancing and improving Network productivity and 

efficiency, leveraging technology, Project management, Leadership development, Succession Planning, 

Knowledge management and developing Capabilities and skills of officers through novel and innovative 

initiatives. Under his leadership, HPCL is constructing India's largest Cavern at Mangalore of storage 

capacity 80000 Metric Ton. During the COVID-19 pandemic, under his guidance, all the bottling plants 

and distributor network operated effective and safe manner to ensure timely delivery of LPG refills to 8 Cr 

LPG customer.
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BOARD’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

Particulars Year 2022-23 Year 2021-22

(Audited) (Audited)
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(  in Cr.)

On behalf of the Board of Directors of your Company, I have the pleasure in presenting the 25th Annual 
Report on the business and operations of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 and the Auditors' Reports and Comments of Comptroller & 
Auditor General of India (C&AG).

It is a matter of great pleasure that the Company completed 20th year of successful business operations 
during 2022-23 and recorded growth of 37.06% in thruput, 37.69%in Revenue from Operations and 40.53% 
in Profit after tax, as compared to previous year. The key financial highlights of your company are given 
below:

Operating Income 141.89 103.05

Interest & Other Income 26.39 25.10

Total Income   168.28 128.15

Operating Expenses (43.32) (35.54)

Operating Profit 124.96 92.61

Interest Expense (1.04) (1.01)

Net Profit 123.92 91.60

Depreciation (10.40) (10.20)

Net Profit before Taxation (PBT) 113.52 81.40

Prov. for Taxation:

Current Tax (28.40) (20.17)

Deferred Tax (0.40) (0.95)

Profit after Taxation (PAT) 84.72 60.28

Balance brought forward from previous financial year 30.82 58.34

Amount available for Appropriation 115.54 118.62

Dividend Paid 80.66 87.79

Other Comprehensive Income that will not be 
reclassified to Profit or (Loss) (0.02) (0.01)

Balance carried forward 34.86 30.82

SHAREHOLDERS' VALUE (Amount in Rs.)

Earnings per Share 1.54 1.10

Book Value per Share 10.64 10.56



(Figures in million metric tonne)
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PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE:

Your company achieved thruput of 3.894 Million Metric Tonne (MMT) during the year 2022-23 
compared to 2.841 MMT achieved during the year 2021-22. 

The details of thruput handled at Hassan and Devangunthi are as follows:

 Year Hassan Delivery  Devangunthi Delivery  Total Delivery 

 2022-23 3.402 0.492 3.894

 2021-22 2.506 0.335 2.841

l Energy consumption of 113 BTU/MT-KM as against Standard energy consumption range of 50 
BTU to 135 BTU.

l Power cost of 24 paisa per MT - KM which is reasonable.

l Operating cost of 59 paisa / MT-KM which is reasonable.

l Revenue Contribution per employee is Rs. 4.81Crore and PAT contribution per Employee is Rs. 
2.42 Crore.

l Savings in power cost for FY 2022-23 is Rs. 4.01 Cr. with optimum use of captive solar power 
generation of Rs. 3.78 Cr. & power purchase from IEX of Rs. 0.23 Cr. 

l Capacity utilization of pipeline is 70 % with respect to design capacity of 5.600 MMTPA as 
compared to capacity utilization of 51 % during 2021-22.

SAFETY MEASURES: 

Your Company has taken following measures during the year to improve the safety of the pipeline:

l For emergency preparedness, Offsite Mock drills conducted periodically in presence of District & 
Factory Authorities, Department of Fire & Emergency Services, Police Officials and mutual aid 
members.

l To improve safety, Fire Alarm Control repeater panel installed in main Security Room (Emergency 
Control Centre 2) at Mangalore, Neriya and Hassan Stations

 l To improve monitoring system, NVR system for CCTV provided at all Main locations

l For enhanced safety, Surge Relief valve skid and Pressure Control Valve installed at Devangunthi 
Station.

l To ensure adequate lighting at all times, DC solar lighting system installed at Sectionalizing Valve 
4 station which is located in remote area in the western Ghat region.

l 48V DC Dual float cum boost chargers which are compact type with stabilized output and 
MODBUS communication protocol provided at PMHBL locations.

l Retrofitting of AMF panel and auto changeover of existing 250 kVA DG Set done at Neriya & 
Hassan station
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ISO CERTIFICATION: 

The Company is certified for ISO Management Standards viz 

 i.  QMS ISO: 9001:2015 – Quality management system

 ii. EMS ISO: 14001:2015 – Environment management system

 iii. OHSMS ISO: 45001:2018 - Occupational Health & Safety management systems and 

 iv. EnMS ISO: 50001:2018 – Energy management systems

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS:

The Company has achieved its highest ever thruput during the financialyear 2022-23. During the year, the 
Company has focused on improving the Operational efficiencies. The main focus was on capacity 
utilization&cost optimization across the locations and they have provided satisfactory results. The 
Company has focused on capacity building of employees on both technical and behavioural front.

DETAILS OF MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT:

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial positionof the 
companywhich have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate 
and thedate of this Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES:

The Company is not having any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in nature of business during the year. 

DIVIDEND:

The Company has declared & paid two interim dividend for the year 2022-23, the first being Rs. 0.56/- per 
equity shares of Rs. 10 each (5.60%) in November, 2022 and the second being Rs. 0.91/- per equity shares 
of Rs. 10 each (9.10%) in March, 2023.

No further divided is proposed for the FY 2022-23. 

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 there is no unpaid or unclaimed fund in the Company, 

to be transferred to IEPF.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has not transferred any funds to reserves during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL: 

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 548,70,72,640 

comprising of 54,87,07,264equity shares of Rs. 10 each. During the year under review, your Company has 

neither issued any shares with differentialvoting rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

There is no change in the Capital Structure during the year.
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SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Pursuant to Share purchase agreement executed on 17.07.2023 between the Promoters viz HPCL & 

ONGC and IL&FS Financial Services Limited (IFIN), the IFIN stake in the Company (0.007%) has been 

acquired equally by HPCL & ONGC. 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The Board of your company presently comprises of following Directors: 

1. Sri Pankaj Kumar, Chairman (wef 01.06.2023)

2. Sri Mukundan Venkatesha Mukhami, Managing Director

3. Smt. Pomila Jaspal, Director

4. Sri R. Sridhar, Director

5. Sri Subodh Batra, Director

6. Sri Anuj Kumar Jain, Director

7. Sri Debdulal Adhikari, Director

8. Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath, Director

In line with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Sri Mukundan Venkatesha Mukhami, Managing 

Director, Sri Chandan Kumar Das, Chief Financial Officer and Sri Sachin Jayaswal, Company Secretary 

are the Key Managerial Personnel.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP:

Sri Anurag Sharma who was appointed as Director at the 24th Annual General Meeting on 23.09.2022. 
superannuated from ONGC on 28.02.2023 and consequently resigned from the Board of the Company with 
effect from 01.03.2023.

Sri Venkatesh Madhava Rao, who was already on the Board as Director was nominated by ONGC as 
Chairman in place of Sri Anurag Sharma and he was appointed as Chairman with effect from 21.03.2023. 

Sri Venkatesh Madhava Rao,  completed his tenure as Managing Director of Mangalore Refinery and 
Petrochemicals Limited on 31.05.2023 and consequently resigned from the Board of the Company with 
effect from01.06.2023.

Sri Pankaj Kumar has been nominated by ONGC as Chairman in place of Sri Venkatesh M Rao and he has 
been appointed as additional director and Chairman of the Company with effect from 01.06.2023.

Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath has been nominated by ONGC as Director in place of Shri Anurag 
Sharma and he was appointed as Additional Director with effect from 29.03.2023. 

Sri Subodh Batra wasnominated by HPCL on the Board of the Company in place of Sri C. Sridhar Goud who 
resigned with effect from 01.04.2022in view of change in nomination by HPCL. Sri Subodh Batra was 
appointed as additional director with effect from 01.04.2022 and as Director at the 24th Annual General 
Meeting held on 23.09.2022.

Sri Anuj Kumar Jain were nominated by HPCL on the Board of the Companyin place of Sri J.S. Prasad who 
resigned with effect from 01.04.2022in view of his superannuation from HPCL. Sri Anuj Kumar Jain was 
appointed as additional director with effect from 05.04.2022 and as Director at the 24th Annual General 
Meeting held on 23.09.2022.

Sri Debdulal Adhikari was nominated by ONGC on the Board of the Company in place of Sri Rakesh Kaul 
who resigned with effect from 01.07.2022 in view of his superannuation from ONGC. Sri Debdulal Adhikari 
was appointed as additional director with effect from 12.07.2022 and as Director at the 24th Annual General 
Meeting held on 23.09.2022.



 

The Board recommends the appointment of Sri Pankaj Kumar and Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath as 
Director at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

The Board places on record its appreciation for valuable contribution made by SriAnurag Sharma, Sri 
Venkatesh M Rao, Sri Rakesh Kaul, Sri J.S. Prasad and Sri C. Sridhar Goud during their tenure on the 
Board of the Company. 

RE-APPOINTMENTS:

As per Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Sri Anuj Kumar Jain(DIN: 09560713) and Sri Subodh Batra 
(DIN: 09364934) are the Directors who will retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, seek re-
appointment. The Board recommends their re-appointment.

Sri Ramamurthi Sridhar (DIN 06749266), Director, nominated by HPCL who in normal course would have 
been considered for rotation as a director at the next AGM, is superannuating from HPCL on 31.08.2023 
and would not be on the Board as a director at the next AGM scheduled in Sep. 2023. Hence as per the next 
order of rotation, with concurrence of the Board, in place of Sri Ramamurthi Sridhar, Sri Anuj Kumar Jain 
(DIN 09560713), Director will retire by rotation.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

Pursuant to MCA notification dated 05.07.2017, Petronet MHB Limited, being a joint venture is not required 
to have any Independent Directors on the Board of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

BOARD MEETING DETAILS:

Seven meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial year 2022-23 as per details 
given below:

th 1. 135  21.04.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block b 332/1,
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar       
     Bengaluru, 560052

th  2 136 24.06.2022 Physical Registered office at Corporate     
     Miller, 2nd floor, block b 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

th  3. 137 25.07.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block b 332/1,       
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar   
     Bengaluru, 560052

th 4 138  20.10.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate       
     Miller, 2nd floor, block b 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar    
     Bengaluru, 560052

Sl. 
No

Sl. No. 
of the Board 

meeting
Daye of Meeting

Mode of holding 
the meeting

Venue of the meeting
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th  5 139 23.11.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block b 332/1,   
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

th  6. 140 20.01.2023 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block b 332/1,
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

 7. 141st 21.03.2023 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block b 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar     
     Bengaluru, 560052

 
Sl. 
No

Sl. No. 
of the Board 

meeting
Date of Meeting

Mode of holding 
the meeting

Venue of the meeting

 
Sl. 
No

Name of Director
No. of Board meetings 
held during respective 
tenure during 2022-23

No. of Board meetings 
attended during 

2022-23

1 Sri Anurag Sharma 
 (Chairman till 28.02.2023)    6   6

2 Sri Mukundan Venkatesha Mukhami   7   7

3 Sri Venkatesh M Rao (appointed as 
 Chairman from 21.03.2023 till 31.0.5.2023, 
 resigned as Chairman/ Director 
 wef 01.06.2023)      7    6

4 Smt. Pomila Jaspal     7   5

5 Sri Rakesh Kaul (resigned as 
 Director wef 01.07.2022)    2   2

6 Sri Ramamurthi Sridhar     7   7

7 Sri Subodh Batra (appointed as 
 Director wef 01.04.2022)    7   7

8 Sri Anuj Kumar Jain (appointed as 
 Director wef 05.04.2022)    7   6

9 Sri Debdulal Adhikari (appointed as 
 Director wef 12.07.2022)     5   4

10 Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath 
 (appointed as Director wef 29.03.2023)   0   0

11 Sri J.S. Prasad (resigned as Director 
 wef 01.04.2022)      0    0

12 Sri C Sridhar Goud (resigned as 
 Director wef 01.04.2022)    0   0 

The details of the Directors’ attendance areas follows: 
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING DETAILS:

Year

rd 2021-22 23  Sep. 2022 at 10.30 AM Meeting held through VC, deemed venue being the  
                  (IST) Registered office at Corporate Miller, 2nd floor, 
   block B, 332/1,Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
   Bengaluru, 560052

nd 2020-21 22  Sep. 2021 at 11.00 AM Meeting held through VC, deemed venue being the 
                  (IST) Registered office at Corporate Miller, 2nd floor, 
   block B, 332/1, Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar      
   Bengaluru, 560052

st 2019-20 21  Sep. 2020 at 11 AM Meeting held through VC, deemed venue being the 
                  (IST) Registered office at Corporate Miller, 2nd floor, 
   block B, 332/1, Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
   Bengaluru, 560052

Date & time of AGM Mode and Venue of meeting

No Special Resolution has been passed by the Company in the above three AGMs. 

COMPANY POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION ETC.:

The Company policy on Director's appointment, Remuneration etc. is enclosed as Annexure IA and IB.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD:

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Company has laid down a Policy for performance 
evaluation of the Board, its committees, Independent Directors and other individual Directors which 
include criteria for performance evaluation of the non-executive directors and executive directors. The 
performance evaluation tool for the Directors and the Committees is in the form of questionnaire to be filled 
up by the Directors.

The performance of the Board and its Committees were evaluated after seeking inputs from the directors/ 
members of the Committee. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Your Directors State that:

st(i)  In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31  March 2023, the 
applicable Accounting Standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, 
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(ii)  The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

stview of the State of Affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and of the Profit or Loss of the 
Company for the year ended on that date;

(iii)  The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;
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(iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going concern' basis;

(v)  The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS& THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has systems and procedures to ensure an effective internal control environment for efficient 

conduct of its operations, including financial reporting, statutory compliance and safeguarding its assets. 

The Company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business, the size and 

complexity ofits operations and internal financial controls concerning financial statements are adequate. 

With implementation of SAP ERP system, the internal financial controls have been further strengthened. 

There are procedures in place to ensure recording of all transactions to enable preparation of financial 

statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to ensure accountability. 

Access to all assets of the company is as per general or specific authorization only and a system of 

verification of assets at periodic intervals is in place. The Internal auditors ofthe Company make continuous 

assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls and systems across the Company. 

The Audit Committee and the Management review the findings and the recommendations of the internal 

auditors and take corrective actions, if required.

During the year, internal auditors reviewed such control and no reportable materialweakness in the design 

or operationwas observed.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE SYSTEM:

The Company has a systemfor identification of laws applicable for the company as well as its compliance. 

Under integrated management manual (ISO systems), a legal register is maintained covering 

legislations/regulations/ other requirements applicable to the Company, which is audited annually by the 

integrated management system certification body.

The status of legal compliances are compiled on quarterly basis from all the business units to enable the 

company secretary place, the status of legal compliancesbefore the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

As on 31.03.2023, the Audit Committee of the company comprised of three directors namely Sri R. Sridhar 

(Chairman), Sri Anuj Kumar Jain (Member)& Sri Debdulal  Adhikari (Member). Presently, the Composition 
thof Audit Committee remains the same. The Audit Committee, at its 78 meeting held on 21.04.2023reviewed 

the annual financial statements for the year 2022-23, before its approval by the Board. During the year, the 

recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 

Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23 as per details given 

below:
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 1. 73rd 20.04.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar       
     Bengaluru, 560052

 2. 74th 21.07.2022 Video Conference Deemed venu e being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1,       
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

 3. 75th 19.10.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

 4. 76th 20.01.2023 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

 5. 77th 16.03.2023 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

Sl. 
No

Sl. no. of the 
Audit Committee 

meeting
Date of Meeting

Mode of holding 
the meeting

Venue of the meeting

The details of the attendance of the Audit Committee areas follows: 

 
Sl. 
No

Name of Member of 
the Committee

No. of 
Audit Committee 

meetings held during
respective tenure 

during 2022-23

No. of 
Audit Committee 

meetings attended 
during 2022-23

1 Sri Ramamurthi Sridhar     5    5

2 Sri Anuj Kumar Jain     5   4

3 Sri Debdulal Adhikari     4   3

4 Sri Rakesh Kaul      1    1
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR COMMITTEE):

Presently, the Audit Committee comprises of three directors namely Sri Subodh Batra (Chairman), 
Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath (Member)& Sri Mukundan Venkatesha Mukhami (Member). As 
on 31.03.2023, the CSR Committee comprised of three directors namely Sri Venkatesh M. Rao 
(Chairman), Sri Subodh Batra (Member) &Sri Mukundan Venkatesha Mukhami (Member).

One meetingof the CSR Committee was held during FY 2022-23 on 20.04.2022as per details given 
below:

 

 1. 19th 20.04.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

Sl. 
No

Sl. no. of the 
CSR Committee 

meeting
Date of Meeting

Mode of holding 
the meeting

Venue of the meeting

 Sl. 
No

Name of Member of 
the Committee

No. of CSR 
Committee meetings 

held during respective 
tenure during 2022-23

No. of CSR
Committee meetings 

attended during 
2022-23

1 Sri Venkatesh M Rao (Chairman)   1   1

2 Sri Subodh Batra     1   1

3 Sri Mukundan Venkatesha Mukhami   1   1

The details of the attendance of the CSR Committee areas follows: 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (N&R COMMITTEE):

Presently, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of three directors namely Sri Debdulal 
Adhikari (Chairman), Sri Anuj Kumar Jain (Member) and Sri Mundkur Shyamprasad Kamath). As on 
31.03.2023, the N&R Committee comprised of three members namely Sri Venkatesh M. Rao (Chairman), 
Sri Anuj Kumar Jain &Sri Debdulal Adhikari. 

Three meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held during 2022-23 as per details 
given below:

 

 1. 20th 13.05.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

Sl. 
No

Sl. no. of the 
N&R Committee 

meeting

Date of meeting
the meeting

Mode of 
holding 

Venue of the meeting
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Sl. 
No

Sl. no. of the 
N&R Committee 

meeting

Date of meeting
the meeting

Mode of 
holding 

Venue of the meeting

 2. 21st 21.06.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

 3. 22nd 19.10.2022 Video Conference Deemed venue being the 
     Registered office at Corporate 
     Miller, 2nd floor, block B, 332/1, 
     Thimmaiah road, Vasanth Nagar 
     Bengaluru, 560052

The details of the attendance of the N&R Committee areas follows: 

 Sl. 
No

Name of Member of 
the Committee

No. of N&R Committee 
meetings held 

during respective 
tenure during 2022-23

No. of N&R Committee 
meetings attended 

during 2022-23

1 Sri Venkatesh M Rao (Chairman)   3   3

2 Sri Anuj Kumar Jain     3   3

3 Sri Debdulal Adhikari     1   1

4 Sri Rakesh Kaul      2    2

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES: 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) of the Company has formulated and 
recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities 
to be undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy of the 
Company can be accessed at:
https://www.petronetmhbl.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/csrpolicy-1.pdf

The Company focuses on several corporate social responsibility projects to improve the lives of people 
through its different initiatives in the areas of Rural development, Health, Sanitation, Education, etc.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure II  to this Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

Though Vigil Mechanism is not mandatory for the Company as per the Provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, however, pursuant to the MOP&NG guidelines dated 19.11.2013, Vigilance Administration has been 
entrusted to Chief Vigilance Officer, Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited with concurrence of 
Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, Govt. of India. 



RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and has constituted a Risk Management Committee which has been entrusted with the 
responsibility to assess and report Company's Risk Management Framework and overseeing all the risks 
that the organization faces such as operational, financial, safety &security, regulatory, legal, reputational 
and other risks that have been identified and assessed to ensure that there is a sound Risk Management 
Policy in place to address such concerns / risks. The Risk Management process covers risk identification, 
assessment, analysis and mitigation. 

The risk register of the Company is periodically placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for 
review. 

AUDITORS, AUDIT & EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON THE REMARKS MADE BY 
AUDITORS IN AUDIT REPORT:

COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA:

We are pleased to convey that NIL Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 
143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received for the year 2022-23.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORT:

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) have appointed M/s YCRJ & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, Bengaluru as Statutory Auditors of your Company for the year 2022-23 and they have audited 
the Accounts for the year 2022-23. There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimerin 
the Audit Report. 

thAt the 24 Annual General Meeting of the Company, the Board was authorized to fix the remuneration of the 
Statutory Auditor for the Financial Year 2022-23 and accordingly the Board has fixed remuneration of Rs. 
2,50,000 plus out of pocket expenses plus GST at applicable rate for the Statutory Auditor. For the year 
2023-24, the appointment of Statutory Auditor by the C&AG is awaited.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Actand the rules made there under, Sri S. Viswanathan was 
appointed as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial 
Audit Report (MR3) for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure 
III to this Report. There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in the Audit Report. 

COST RECORDS:

The Company is required to maintain cost records as specified under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained.

COST AUDITORS:

M/s Bandyopadhyaya Bhaumik & Co., Cost Auditors were appointed as Cost Auditor for the financial year 
2022-23 pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 & Companies (Cost Audit records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014 at a remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- plus GST plus out of pocket expenses.  

COST AUDIT REPORT: 

M/s Bandyopadhyaya Bhaumik & Co., Cost Auditors have carried out the Cost Audit for FY 2022-23. 
There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in the Audit Report. 
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The Cost Audit for the financial year 2021-22 was carried out by M/s Bandyopadhyaya Bhaumik & Co and 
the Cost Audit Report was filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs during the year under review, before 
the stipulated date of filing.

REPORTING OF FRAUD:

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to 
report to the Audit Committee and / or to the Board as required under Section 143(12) of the Act and 
the rules made thereunder.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on 
Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH) 
and the rules made thereunder. The Policy aims to provide protection to employees at workplace and 
prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment and formatters connected or incidental thereto, with 
the objective of providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure. 

The Company is in compliance under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and its provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee. The Internal Complaints Committee follows the principle of natural justice and ensures a fair 
and impartialenquiry process. The Committee has prepared annual report and submitted the same to the 
concerned authorities. During the year under review the details of complaints received are as follows:

l No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year -   Nil

l No. of complaints received during the year -   Nil

l No. of complaints disposed of -     Not applicable

l No. of complaints pending at the end of the year -   Nil

ANNUAL RETURN (MGT 7)

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the extract of the Annual 
Return for FY 2022-23 is uploaded on the website of the Company and the same is available weblink 
https://www.petronetmhbl.com/corporate-governance-disclosures/

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITIES 
PROVIDED:

There are no loans, advances, guarantees and investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All Related Party Transactions, that were entered into during the Financial Year underreview, were on an 
arm's lengthbasis, and in the ordinary course of business and are in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit 
Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions 
which are repetitive in nature or when the need for these transactions cannot be foreseen in advance.

None of the transactions entered into with Related Parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.The Company has adopted a Policy for dealing with Related Party Transactions. 
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Details of transactions with Related Parties as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 
8(2) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure IV in Form AOC 2 and forms part of 
this Report.

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 
2014:

The information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is annexed at  Annexure V.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION & PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURE:

Your Company, being a Government Company, is exempted to furnish this information under Section 197 of 
Companies Act, 2013 vide Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Notification dated 05.06.2015.

DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 'Meetings of the Board of Directors' 
and 'General Meetings' respectively, have been followed by the Company.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS 
AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

The Company does not have any pending application or proceeding under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DIFFERENCES IN THE AMOUNT OF VALUATION UNDER RULE 8(5)(xii) OF COMPANIES 
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2104

The Company has not entered into any one time settlement and has not availed any loan during the 
year 2022-23.

SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATOR:

PNGRB TARIFF ORDER:

The Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB), vide the Order No. TO/2021-22/02 dated 
31.12.2021 have maintained the pipeline tariff at existing level of 75% of base Rail Tariff on equivalent rail 
distance along the Pipeline route 01.01.2020 to 30.09.2023. 

EXTENSION OF PIPELINE FROM HASSAN TO CHITRADURGA:

Your Company filed Expression of Interest (EOI) with PNGRB for laying Petroleum Product Pipeline from 
Hassan to Chitradurga in Karnataka. However, PNGRB decided to invite bids for laying of Petroleum 
Product Pipeline from Devangonthi to Chitradurga in Karnataka. Upon rejection of the review petition filed 
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by your Company with PNGRB an appeal was preferred with the appellate authority against the order of 
PNGRB which on 01.12.2021 set aside the order of PNGRB and remanded the matter to the PNGRB 
directing it to decide the matter afresh after hearing all the parties.

PNGRB vide Public Notice dated 07.02.2022 reinitiated public consultation process for the proposed 
pipeline on both the routes i.e. (i) EOI application of PMHBL for Hassan-Chitradurga and (ii) The route as 
earlier decided by the Board and invited bids i.e., Devangonthi-Chitradurga. Your Company submitted 
representation to PNGRB on 07.03.2022 against the public notice dated 07.02.2022 objecting to inclusion 
of Devangonthi – Chitradurga pipeline without concluding lawfully tabled EOI for Hassan Chitradurga 
pipeline and requested PNGRB to set aside the invited comments on Devangonthi Chitradurga Pipeline 
and delink it from PMHBL tabled EOI for Hassan Chitradurga pipeline. PNGRB invited open house 
discussion on 20.05.2022 wherein your company again requested PNGRB to delink Devangonthi 
Chitradurga pipeline and approve Hassan – Chitradurga pipeline as per its EOI.

However, PNGRB invited bid for both the pipelines i.e. Hassan – Chitradurga and Devangonthi 
Chitradurga pipeline with a minimum capacity of 1 MMT each. In view of financial non-viability, due to two 
pipelines of 1 MMT capacity each terminating at Chitradurga, your company decided to withdraw from the 
bidding process for the Hassan – Chitradurga pipeline. 

HUMAN RESOURCE & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Industrial relations across the Company remained cordial during the year. Compliance of safety rules, 
norms and procedures is ensured and closely monitored. Safety related workshops are regularly held to 
sensitisethe workers.

The Company strives to promote a collaborative and participative work culture and reward for individual 
contribution. The Company believe in lifelong learning and competency development for its employees 
and offer ample opportunities to learn and grow to ensure their career never stands still.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors would like to place on record appreciation for the Oil Marketing Companies, Mangalore 
Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited (MRPL), and the communities in which the Company operates, for 
their unstinted co-operation and valuable support extended during the year.

Your Directors appreciate and value the contributions made by each and every employee of the 
Company. 

Your Directorsalso take this opportunity to gratefully acknowledge the continuous support& guidance 
provided by Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Boardand the 
Management of the promoter companies viz Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL) and Oil 
and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC).

      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
         
         Sd/-

(PankajKumar)
(DIN 09252235)

             Chairman
Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.07.2023
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Annexure IA

POLICY FOR SELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND DETERMINING THEIR INDEPENDENCE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board, shall review on an annual basis, appropriate 
skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual members. The 
objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience that are relevant for the Company's 
operations. Based on the review the Committee/ Board shall formulate the skills, knowledge and 
experience to be possessed by the Independent Director on case-to-case basis. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of 
appointment / re-appointment and the Board shall assess the same periodically. The Board shall re-assess 
determinations of independence when any new interests or relationships are disclosed by a Director. In 
addition, the Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors” as specified in 
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and should satisfy the criteria of independence, as laid down in 
Companies Act, 2013.

Annexure IB

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER 
EMPLOYEES.

Executive Directors: 

There is only one executive Director in the Company – MD, PMHBL whose Remuneration is governed by 
the terms of Deputation as advised by HPCL. 

Non-Executive Directors: 

All non-executive Directors on the Board are executives of PSU viz ONGC/ HPCL/ MRPL and are neither 
eligible for sitting fee nor any other remuneration from the Company. 

Independent Directors: 

The Independent Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and the 
Committees thereof as per following details:

 - Rs. 10,000/- per day for meeting of Board of Directors 

 - In case Committee meetings are on the same day as Board meeting, No sitting fee for the 
Committee meeting. Otherwise Rs. 5,000/- per day for Committee meeting.

Remuneration to KMP and other employees:

KMP and other employees shall be assigned grades according to their qualifications and work experience, 
competencies as well as their roles and responsibilities in the organization. Individual remuneration shall be 
determined within the approved grade and shall be based on various factors such as job profile, skill sets, 
seniority, experience etc. 
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FY 2022-23

  1 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

  2 Composition of CSR Committee:

3
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The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee formulated and recommended to the Board, a 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy bringing out the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company, which has been approved by the Board.

The company has identified the following five CSR thrust areas: 

1. Promoting health care and sanitation

2. Promoting education, employment enhancing vocation skills and livelihood enhancement project

3.  Promoting Women Empowerment

4.  Promoting Environmental Sustainability & conservation of Natural Resources

5.  Promoting Rural Development in alignment with other thrust areas

 i) Sri Venkatesh M Rao Chairman, CSR 
     Committee & Director 
     on the Board    1   1

 ii) Sri Subodh Batra  Member, CSR 
     Committee & Director 
     on the Board    1   1

 iii) Sri Mukundan Venkatesha  Member, CSR 
  Mukhami   Committee & Managing 
     Director on the Board  1   1

 Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Sl. 
 No. 

Name of Director 
Designation / Nature 

of Directorship 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during 
the year

Provide the web-link(s) where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR 
Projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

Weblink of Composition of CSR Committee: https://www.petronetmhbl.com/wp-content/uploads/

2022/04/csrcomposition.pdf

Weblink of CSR Policy: https://www.petronetmhbl.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/csrpolicy-1.pdf

Weblink of CSR annual action plan: https://www.petronetmhbl.com/wp-content/uploads/

2022/06/CSRannualactionplan2022website.pdf
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                                                   Amount Unspent (in   ) 

Total Amount Spent for
the Financial Year

(in  )

 Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
Transfer the Fund Transfer

2,03,33,202 0.00 - - 0.00 -

 

4  Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact
  Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of 
  sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.      Not Applicable

  a. Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135   90,34,00,000

  b. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section 
   (5) of section 135          1,81,00,000

5  c. Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities 
   of the previous financial years.        0.00

  d. Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.     0.00

  e. Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]     1,81,00,000

  a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other
   than Ongoing Project).         1,93,64,954

  b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads.       9,68,248

  c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable      0.00

  d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+©]  .   2,03,33,202

  e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

6

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 

as per subsection
(6) of section 135.

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII 

as per second proviso to 
sub-section (5) of section 135.

f)   Excess amount for set-off, if any:

i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 

 sub-section (5) of section       1,81,00,000

ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year    2,03,33,202

iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(I)]   22,33,202

iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

 activities of the previous Financial Years, if any   0.00

v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] 22,33,202

Sl 
No.

(1)

Particular

(2)

Amount (in Rs.)

(3)
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7 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl.

No.
Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Balance 
amount in 

Unspent CSR 
Account under 
Sub Section (6) 

of Section 
135 (in  )

Amount 
spent in 

the 
Financial 

Year 
(in  .)

Amount 
(in  )

Date of 
transfer

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years 
(in  .)

Deficiency, 
if any

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR Account 
under 

Sub Section (6) 
of Section 135

 (in  )

Amount transferred 
to a fund specified 
under Schedule VII 

as per second proviso 
to sub section (5) 

of section 135, if any.

1 2019-20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 2020-21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 2021-22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

  TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year:

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired -  Not applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

✓Yes No

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal 
Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable 
property as well as boundaries)
9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as 
per subsection (5) of section 135. 
Not applicable as the Company has spent two percent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of 
section 135.

 Sd/-          Sd/-
M V Mukundan        Subodh Batra
Managing Director       Chairman, CSR Committee

Date: 24.04.2023

Sl.
No.

Short particulars 
of the property or
asset(s) [including
complete address 

and location of 
the  property]

Date of
creation

Amount
of CSR
amount
spent

Pin code of
the

property
or asset(s)

 Not applicable -- -- -- CSR Name    Registered

     Registration  address  

     Number,     

     if applicable  

     – – – 

Details of entity/ Authority/
beneficiary of the registered owner

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
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Annexure III

FORM MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
STFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31  MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The  Members,

PETRONET MHB LIMITED

Corporate Miller, 2nd Floor

Block B, 332/1, Thimmaiah Road

Vasanth Nagar, Bengaluru – 560052

CIN: U85110KA1998GOI024020

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by PETRONET MHB LIMITED (CIN:  U85110KA1998GOI024020)

(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that providedmea 

reasonableb as is for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my 

opinion thereon.

The Company is:

(a)  An Unlisted Public Company (as defined in Section 2(71) of the Companies Act 2013)

(b)  A Joint Venture Company with exemption from appointment of Independent Directors, as per 

Rule 4 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, as 

amended.

(c)  Not required to constitute Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee as it is 

not covered under Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 

2014 pursuant to Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

(d)  A Government Company (as defined in Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013) with 

exemptions from some of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as per Notification No. GSR 

463(E), dated 05.06.2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, as amended) and

(e)  A Subsidiary Company of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (Government Company) 

w.e.f. 31.01.2018 (as defined in Sec 2 (87) of the Companies Act 2013

(f)  The books of accounts and records of the Company are subject to supplementary Audit by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

(g)  Since the Company is Unlisted Public Company, the provisions of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') and Regulations and Guidelines prescribed thereunder are 

not applicable to the Company.

The Company is engaged in the business of transportation of Petroleum products through pipeline system 

and it is required to comply with the applicable provisions of safety and related laws for transportation of 

hazardous substances/materials.
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Management's Responsibility for Secretarial Compliances: 

The Company's Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial records and 

for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and 

regulations. 

Secretarial Auditor's Responsibility: 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standards and procedures followed 

by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 

that, in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 

to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on, 31stMarch, 2023accordingtotheprovisionsof:

 (I)  TheCompaniesAct,2013(theAct)andtheRulesmadethereunder;

(ii)  The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;

(iii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the Rules made thereunder; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(v)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings. There were no Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 

Investment and External Commercial Borrowings during the financial year under 

Report.

Other Laws applicable specifically to the Company are:

 (i)  Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, Amended 1988 & Rules, 1975 

 (ii)  Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 Amended 1987 & Rules, 1982

 (iii)  Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1974 amended 1988 & Rules, 1975

 (iv) Noise Pollution (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000 and amended 2002

 (v)  Environment (Protection) Act, 1986, Amended 1991 & Rules 1986 Amended 2006 

 (vi) The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 amended 1992

 (vii) Batteries Management & Handling Rules, 2001

 (viii) Petroleum Act, 1934 and rules, Petroleum Rules 2002 made thereunder

 (ix) Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules, 1989
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 (x)  Petroleum and minerals pipelines (Acquisition of right of user inland) Act, 1962 with rules

 (xi) Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board Act, 2006 with rules & regulations.

 (xii) Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board (levy of fee and other charges)  Regulations, 2007 

and other allied acts 

 (xiii) The Hazardous Waste Management & Handling) Rules, 1989 amended 2008

 (xiv) Forest (Conservation) Act, 1980

 (xv) The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and various allied acts

 (xvi) Factories Act, 1948

 (xvii) EPF Act, 1991

 (xviii) ESI Act, 1948 

 (xix) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention and Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013

 (xx) The Central Motor Vehicles Rules, 1989 as amended in 2001 

 (xxi) Codes of Practices for Emergency Response and Disaster Management Plan(ERDMP) 

 (xxii) The Karnataka Shops & Commercial Establishments Act, 1961

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards with regard to 

meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

Accordingly, we state that during the period under review there were adequate systems and processes in 

place to monitor and ensure compliance with various applicable laws and that the Company has complied 

with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

We have not examined compliance by the Company with respect to:

  (a) Applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to 

review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

  (b)  Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange(s) and the Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') as the company is an 

Unlisted Public Company. 

We further report that - The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes 

on Agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

 As per the minutes of the Board Meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions at the 

Meetings were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 

There were no amendment/modification of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company 

during the period under report. 
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We further report that based on the statutory compliance reports obtained by the management and taken 

on record at the Board Meetings, there were adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The Company  has constituted the following Board Committees:

1) Audit Committee

2) CSR Committee

3) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

I have also examined the adequacy of systems and processes to monitor and ensure Compliance with 

the provisions of other applicable Laws such as Indian Contracts Act, Labour Laws and Industrial Laws 

report  that the rear eadequate systems and processes are in place in the Company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable other  laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period there were no other specific events/actions in pursuance of 

the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major bearing on the Company's 

affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules etc.

Swayambhu  Viswanathan 

Practicing Company Secretary

FCS No: F12190

CP No: 5284

UDIN:F012190E000540278

Date: 04.07.2023

Place: Bangalore

Enclosed: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 

formsan integral part of this report.



AnnexureA

To,

The Members

       PETRONET MHB LIMITED

Corporate Miller, 2nd Floor

Block B, 332/1, Thimmaiah Road

Vasanth Nagar, Bengaluru – 560052

CIN: U85110KA1998GOI024020

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2) I have followed the audit practices and process as are appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 

the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book so 

Accounts of the Company.

4)) Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and   regulations and happening of events, etc.

5) The compliance of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on 

test basis.

6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company.

 
        Swayambhu Viswanathan
                                                                               Company Secretary 

        FCS No: F12190
Date: 04.07.2023       C.P.NO. 5284
Place: Bangalore                                                          UDIN: F012190E000540278
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Annexure IV

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis for FY 2022-23

Form No. AOC-2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contract/ arrangements entered into by the Company with
Related Parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis for FY 2022-23
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Annexure V
A. Conservation of Energy:
 
 l As a green energy initiative, Solar power plant of total 3.828 MWP Capacity is installed at PMHBL 

Mangalore, Hassan, Devangunthi & SV/IP locations during 2019-20 at a cost of Rs. 16.23 Cr.

 l Approx. 3800 Tons CO2 reduction achieved during the year 2022-23 due to operations of 3828 
KWp Solar power plant. In addition to reduction in CO2 emission, there is savings in power cost 
for FY 2022-23 is Rs. 3.78 Cr. with optimum use of captive solar power generation.

l Optimum usage of combination of single and dual mainline pumps at Mangalore as per thruput 
requirement to minimize the power consumption.

B. Technology Absorption:

 l To improve Security monitoring, NVR system for CCTV provided at all Main locations.
 
 l For enhanced pipeline operations; new Surge Relief valve skid and Pressure Control Valve 

installed at Devangunthi Station.

 l 48V DC Dual float cum boost chargers at Main & SV stations with stabilized output and MODBUS 
communication protocol provided at PMHBL locations.

 l DC solar lighting system installed at Sectionalizing Valve Station No- 4 which is located in remote 
area in western Ghat region.

 l Expenditure on Research & Development is Nil. 

l Import of technology:

Sl. No.   Technology imported   Year of import

      NIL     NA

C. Foreign Exchange earning & outgo: 

During the year, the Foreign Exchange earning & outgo were as follows:

 Particulars      Amount (Rs. in lacs)

 Foreign exchange earning     Nil

 Foreign exchange outgo     Nil

      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Annexure I to V

         
                 Sd/-

(Pankaj Kumar)
(DIN 09252235)

               Chairman
Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.07.2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of M/s. Petronet MHB Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. Petronet MHB Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss, 
statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2023 and its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to 
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Company's annual report but does not include the standalone financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon. Such other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of 
this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
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inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are  
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action accordingly.

Responsibility of Management for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

D Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

D Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

D Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

39

Petronet MHB Limited 25th Annual Report 2022-23



D Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

D Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

e. As per notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
section 164(2) of the Act regarding the disqualifications of Directors is not applicable to the Company, 
since it is a Government Company;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

40

Petronet MHB Limited 25th Annual Report 2022-23



g. As per notification number G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
section 197 of the Act regarding remuneration to director is not applicable to the Company, since it is a 
Government Company;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements – Refer Note No.29 of the standalone financial statements.

 ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
are material foreseeable losses.

 iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

 iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Intermediary”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

   (b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Funding Party”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries

   (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and 
(b)above,contain any material mis-statement.

 v. The dividend paid during the year by the company is in compliance with section 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

 vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company only 
with effect from April 1, 2023, reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

3. As required by section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure C”, a statement on the matters specified by 
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the company.

Place: Bangalore       For YCRJ & Associates         
Date:  24-04-2023                                                  Chartered Accountants  
                           Firm Regn No. 006927S

         
         Sd/-
         CA Poornima Y
         Partner
         M.No: 212804
         UDIN:23212804BGXCSX2943
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements' of our report 
of even date to the standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2023)

As per the books and records produced before us and as per the information and explanations given to us and 
based on such audit checks that we considered necessary and appropriate, we confirm that:

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use 
assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b. As per the information and explanation given us, all Property, Plant and Equipment,right-of-use 
assets and other Intangible assets have been physically verified by the management during the 
year which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to size of the company and the nature of 
its assets. As explained to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. As per the information and explanation given us and based on the examination of the records of 
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are not held in the name of the company in 
few cases. In respect of lands allotted by KIADB amounting to Rs.36.2 Lakhs, Lease cum sale 
agreements were entered into and the absolute sale deed has not been executed

d. As per the information and explanation given to us the Company has not revalued any of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of-use assets).

e. As per the information and explanation given us, no proceedings have been initiated during the 
year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder.

ii. 

  a. The company is a service company, primarily rendering transportation of petroleum products. 
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories other than stores, spares and project 
surplus. The management has conducted physical verification of such inventories at the end of 
the year. No material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.

  b. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of  5 crore, in 
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis 
of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable.

iii. As per the information and explanation given to us, the company has not made investments in, provided 
any guarantee or security or granted any loans, secured or advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. Hence reporting under 
clause 3(iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

iv. As per the information provided and explanation given to us, there are no loans, investments, 
guarantees, and security under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013. Hence the provisions 
of clause 3(iv) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.



viii.  As per the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of 1961). Hence, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the 
Order is not applicable.

ix.  As per the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any loans or 
borrowings from a financial institution, bank, Government or issued any debenture. Hence, reporting 
under clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

x.  As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised any money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, reporting 
under clause 3(x) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. 

 a.  No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year.

 b.  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

 c.  As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not received any whistle 
blower complaints during the year.

xii. The company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable.

xiii. As per the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,2013 where applicable and details of 
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v. As per the information provided and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit 
or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not 
applicable

vi. We have broadly reviewed accounts and records maintained by the Company pursuant to rules made 
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, in 
respect of Company's products to which the said rules are made applicable and are of the opinion that, 
prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have, however, 
not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate.

vii. 

 a. As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has generally been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and service tax, provident fund, income-
tax, cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the 
company did not have any dues on account of employee's state insurance, duty of customs and 
duty of excise.

 As per the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of aforesaid dues were outstanding as on March 31, 2023 for a period of more than 6 months 
from the date they became payable.

b. As per the information and explanations given to us, the following statutory dues have not been 
deposited on account of dispute:

Statute Nature of dues
Amount

  in lakhs
Forum where dispute is 

pending

Income tax 
Act, 1961

 Income tax 30.40 Commissioner of Income 

Tax ( Appeal



such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by 
the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. 

 a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business.

 b. We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures.

xv. As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and also is not a core investment company (as defined in the 
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). Hence, reporting under 
clause 3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and 
the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and 
hence clause 3(xviii) is not applicable to the company.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when 
they fall due.

xx. 

 a. As per the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts 
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring 
a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with 
second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

 b. As per the information and explanations given to us, there are no ongoing projects, 
where the Company has any unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as 
at the end of the previous financial year, to a Special account within a period of 30 days 
from the end of the said financial year as per the provision of section 135(6) of the Act. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

Place: Bangalore      For YCRJ & Associates  
Date: 24-04-2023              Chartered Accountants
           Firm Regn No. 006927S
         

          Sd/-
         CA Poornima Y
                Partner
         M.No:212804 
                    UDIN: 23212804BGXCSX2943
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ of our report 
of even date to the standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2023)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Petronet MHB Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
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the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 
2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

Place: Bangalore       For  YCRJ & Associates 
Date: 24-04-2023        Chartered Accountants 
         Firm Regn No. 006927S
         

         Sd/-

         CA Poornima Y
         Partner
         M.No: 212804 
                  UDIN: 23212804BGXCSX2943
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“Annexure – C” to the Independent Auditors Report

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ of our report 

of even date to the standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2023)

Direction: I.Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT 

system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of 

the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, maybe stated 

Observation: The Company is using an IT - ERP system viz. SAP in which the accounting transactions are 

processed.  The accounting transactions including the payroll are inbuilt in the IT-ERP system.The company 

does not have any outside IT software that needs to be integrated in the accounts.

Direction: II. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of 

debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company's inability to repay the loan? If 

yes, the financial Impact may be stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted for?

Observation: There are no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver write off of debts, loans, 

interest,etc., made by lender to the company due to the company's ability to repay the loan.

Direction: III. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State 

Government or its agencies were properly accounted for / utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases 

of deviation.

Observation: No funds were received/receivable for specific schemes from Central / State Government or its 

agencies.

Place: Bangalore       For  YCRJ & Associates 
Date: 24-04-2023        Chartered Accountants 
                    Firm Regn No. 006927S

         

         Sd/-

         CA Poornima Y
         Partner

         M.No: 212804 
                  UDIN: 23212804BGXCSX2943
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COMMENT OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PETRONET MHB LIMITED FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 The preparation of financial statements of Petronet MHB Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 in 

accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the 

responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial 

statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on 

auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit 

Report dated 24 April 2023. 

 I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the 

financial statements of Petronet MHB Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143(6) (a) of the 

Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the 

statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a 

selective examination of some of the accounting records. 

 On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give 

rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act. 

  

 For and on behalf of the 
       Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

          Sd/-
         (S. Velliangjri)

           Principal Director of Commercial Audit 
Place: Chennai 

Date: 07.07.2023
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Non-current assets     
 (a)  Property, Plant and Equipment  2  12,065.55   12,396.38 
 (b) Right-of-use assets 2.1  716.07   847.26 
 (c) Capital work-in-progress  2.2  379.38   155.41 
 (d) Investment Property 3  7.21   7.33 
 (e) Other Intangible assets  4  876.56   902.64 
 (f) Financial Assets     
  (i) Other financial assets 5  252.33   752.28 
 (g)  Other non-current assets  7  1,509.85   1,533.29 
 (h) Non  Current Tax Assets(Net) 7.1  16.78   37.76

   Total Non - Current Assets   15,823.74  16,632.35
Current assets      
 (a) Inventories 8  250.44   262.13 
 (b) Financial Assets     
  (i) Trade receivables 9  1,740.73   1,465.65 
  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10  111.79   1.05 
  (iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11  43,461.98  42,176.24 
  (iv) Other financial assets 5  1,637.48   1,862.28 
 (c) Other current assets 12  87.45   95.38 
     
   Total Current Assets   47,289.87   45,862.72 
     
Assets classified as held for sale 13  333.27   333.27 
     
   Total Assets   63,446.87   62,828.34 
     
          EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Equity      
 (a) Equity Share capital 14  54,870.73   54,870.73 
 (b) Other Equity 14.1  3,486.37   3,082.13 
    Total equity   58,357.10   57,952.86 
     
Liabilities     
Non-current liabilities     
 (a) Financial Liabilities    
  (i)  Lease liabilities 16.1  810.59   930.14 
  (ii)  Trade payables 15  
     Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises    -     -   
      Dues to Creditor other than Micro & 
    Small Enterprises    -     -   
  (iii) Other financial liabilities 16  657.69   657.69 
 (b) Provisions  17  315.03   277.02 
 (c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6  1,531.59   1,491.63 
  Total Non - Current Liabilities   3,314.91   3,356.48 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

As at March 
31, 2023

As at March  
31, 2022

Note No.Particulars

ASSETS

  In lakhs
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Current liabilities     

 (a) Financial Liabilities    

  (i)  Lease liabilities 16.1  119.54   101.36 

  (ii)  Trade payables 15  

      Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises    41.23   47.62 

   Dues to Creditor other than Micro & 

   Small Enterprises    388.61   356.76 

  (iii) Other financial liabilities 16  322.58   357.94 

 (b) Other current liabilities 18  792.42   559.52 

 (c) Provisions 17  110.49   95.80 

  Total Current Liabilities   1,774.87   1,519.01 

     

 Total Equity and Liabilities   63,446.87   62,828.34 

As at March 
31, 2023

As at March  
31, 2022

Note No.Particulars

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.     
     
As per our report of even date attached
for YCRJ & Associates for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Chartered Accountants Petronet MHB Limited  
Firm Registration Number: 006927S     
     
     
 Sd/-  Sd/-  Sd/-     
 Poornima Y Mukundan V.M.  D. Adhikari
 Partner Managing Director  Director
 Membership Number: 212804 DIN: 09187238  DIN: 09667061
 
     
  Sd/-  Sd/-    
  Chandan Kumar Das  Sachin Jayaswal
  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
     
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore  
Date : 24-04-2023 Date : 24/04/2023
UDIN: 23212804BGXCSX2943   

  In lakhs
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Revenue from operations 19  14,189.14   10,305.55 
Other Income 20  2,638.52   2,509.70 
Total Income   16,827.66   12,815.25 
     
Expenses     
Employee benefit expense 21  957.44   920.62 
Finance costs 22  104.55   100.73 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,2.1,3 &4  1,039.68   1,020.26 
Other expenses 23  3,374.27   2,633.66 
Total Expenses   5,475.94   4,675.26 
     
Profit before tax   11,351.72   8,139.99 
     
Tax Expense     
 Current tax 6  2,839.58   2,016.74 
 Deferred tax 6  40.45   94.97 
Total tax expense   2,880.03   2,111.71      

Profit for the period   8,471.69   6,028.27      

Other comprehensive income     

 Items that will not be recycled to profit or loss   -      -   
  Remeasurements of the defined benefit 
  liabilities / (asset)   (1.94)  (1.75)
  Income tax relating to items that will not 
  be reclassified to profit or loss   0.49   0.44 
 Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss   -     -   
  Others (specify nature)   
  Income tax on items that may be reclassified 
  to profit or loss   -     -        
Total Other comprehensive income, net of tax   (1.45)  (1.31)     

Total comprehensive income for the period   8,470.24   6,026.96     

Earnings per equity share     

 Basic 26  1.54   1.10 
 Diluted 26  1.54   1.10 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended 
March 31, 2023

Note No.Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2022

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.     

As per our report of even date attached
for YCRJ & Associates for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Chartered Accountants Petronet MHB Limited
Firm Registration Number: 006927S           

 Sd/-  Sd/-  Sd/-     
 Poornima Y Mukundan V.M.  D. Adhikari
 Partner Managing Director  Director
 Membership Number: 212804 DIN: 09187238  DIN: 09667061
  Sd/-  Sd/-    
  Chandan Kumar Das  Sachin Jayaswal
  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary

Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore  
Date : 24-04-2023 Date : 24/04/2023
UDIN: 23212804BGXCSX2943   

  In lakhs
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Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Year ended March 
31, 2023

Year ended March 
31, 2022

Particulars

A. Cash flow from operating activities:   

Profit for the period before tax  11,351.72   8,139.99 

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash 

provided by operating activities:   

 Depreciation and amortization  1,039.68   1,020.26 

 Loss on disposal of fixed assets  -     0.39 

 Interest income on fixed deposits  (2,600.37)  (2,383.27)

 Finance Charges on Lease   92.84   100.73 

 Other adjustments  11.71   (76.98)

Changes in assets and liabilities   

 Trade receivables  (275.08)  (289.43)

 Other financial assets  499.94   3.50 

 Inventories  11.69   2.09 

 Other assets   31.37   (19.80)

 Trade payables  25.46   111.58 

 Other financial liabilities  (35.36)  (108.90)

 Provisions and other liabilities  283.66   (2,050.13)

Cash generated from operations  10,437.26   4,450.02 

Income taxes paid  (2,650.55)  (1,566.58)

Net cash generated from operating activities  7,786.71   2,883.44 

   

B. Cash flow from investing activities:   

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (543.11)  (297.89)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  0.99   0.91 

Capital advances  (233.31)  (108.99)

Bank Deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents  (1,285.74)  4,213.84 

Interest received on fixed deposits  2,645.40   2,202.16 

Net cash from investing activities  584.23   6,010.04 

   

C. Cash flow from financing activities:   

Interest expense on lease liabilities  (92.84)  (100.73)

Payment of lease liabilities  (101.37)  (87.70)

Payment of Interim dividends  (8,066.00)  (8,779.32)

Net cash used in financing activities  (8,260.20)  (8,967.75)

  In lakhs
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Year ended March 
31, 2023

Year ended March 
31, 2022

Particulars

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  110.74   (74.27)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  1.05   75.32 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  111.79   1.05

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.     
     
As per our report of even date attached
for YCRJ & Associates for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Chartered Accountants Petronet MHB Limited  
Firm Registration Number: 006927S     
     
     
 Sd/-  Sd/-  Sd/-     
 Poornima Y Mukundan V.M.  D. Adhikari
 Partner Managing Director  Director
 Membership Number: 212804 DIN: 09187238  DIN: 09667061
 
     
  Sd/-  Sd/-    
  Chandan Kumar Das  Sachin Jayaswal
  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
     
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore  
Date : 24-04-2023 Date : 24/04/2023
UDIN: 23212804BGXCSX2943   

  In lakhs



Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023  

 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES   
  
1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 Petronet MHB Limited (The ‘Company’) was incorporated on 31st July, 1998 on common carrier principle 
to provide petroleum product transportation facility from Mangalore Refinery at Mangalore to the Oil 
Marketing Companies Terminals at Hassan & Devanagonthi (Bangalore). The Company is a Public 
Limited Company incorporated & domiciled in India. Its shares are not listed on any recognised stock 
exchanges in India. The registered office of the company is located at # Corporate Miller 2nd Floor Block 
B, 332/1, Thimmaih Road, Vasanth Nagar, Bangalore Karnataka- 560 052.  

  
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1. Statement of Compliance 

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind ASs) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.  

1.2. Basis of preparation 

 These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the 
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in 
exchange for goods and services. 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset 
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market 
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the 
measurement date.  

 The Corporation’s Presentation currency and Functional currency is Indian Rupees (Rs). All figures 
appearing in the Financial Statements are rounded to the nearest  lakhs (Rs Lakhs) , except where 
otherwise indicated. 

1.3. Use of estimates and judgements 

 Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

 The company makes estimates and takes assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below. 

1.3.1 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment   

 The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. 
This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. 

1.3.2 Valuation of deferred tax assets  

 The company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The 
policy for the same has been explained under Note 1.11.2. 
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1.3.3 Provisions ,Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets 

 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not 
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities & Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial 
statements, however contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statement. 

 Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Financial Statements in the period 
in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 

1.4. Current versus non-current classification 

 The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

  •  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

  •  Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

  •  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

  •  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period 

 All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 A liability is current when: 

  • It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

  • It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

  • It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

  • There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period 

 The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

1.5. Assets held for sale 

 Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale, if their carrying amount will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is 
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present 
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) 
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to 
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

 Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.   

1.6. Revenue Recognition  

 Revenue is recognised upon transfer of Control of Promised products or services to customers in an 
amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or 
services .  

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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1.6.1. Income from Services 

 Transportation income is recognised as upon transfer of service to the customer i.e.  on delivery of 
petroleum products to oil marketing companies. Revenue is recognised by allocating the transaction 
price as per agreed tariff  rate  to the distinct service . 

1.6.2. Interest Income 

 Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through 
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

  

1.6.3. Other Income 

 Insurance claims are accounted on acceptance of claims by respective Insurance Companies. The 
liquidated damage recovered from contracts (both revenue and capital contracts ) is recognised as 
income as and when recovered.   

1.7. Leases   

 The Company's Lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Building . The Company 
assesses whether a Contract contains a lease, at inception of a Contract. A contract is or contains , a 
lease if the contact conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration .To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset , the Company assesses whether: (I) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
, (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period 
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.   

 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a 
term of twelve months or less(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low 
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease.   

 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease 
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if not 
readily determinable,using the incremental borrowing rates of these leases.   

1.8. Foreign Currency   

 In preparing the financial statements of the company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's 
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates 
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value 
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the 
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss 
in the period in which they arise.    

1.9. Borrowing Costs   

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, 
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or 
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use.   

 Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure 
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.   

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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1.10. Employee Benefits  

1.10.1. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits 
 Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when 

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 
  
 For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 

projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual 
reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to 
the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected 
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in 
the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is 
reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is 
recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the 
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit 
costs are categorised as follows: 

  • service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on 
curtailments and settlements); 

  • net interest expense or income; and 

  • re-measurement  

 The company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 
'Employee benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. 

 The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or 
surplus in the company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to 
the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions 
in future contributions to the plans.  

 A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw 
the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs. 

1.10.2. Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 

 A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual 
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.   

 Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. 

 Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present 
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the company in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Remeasurements as a result of experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 

1.11. Taxation  

 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
  
1.11.1. Current tax 

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before 
tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are 
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s 
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period. 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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1.11.2. Deferred tax 

 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences 
can be utilised.  

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part 
of the asset to be recovered.   

 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.  The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.   

1.11.3. Current and deferred tax for the year 

 Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred 
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.  

  
1.12. Property, Plant & Equipment  

 Land and buildings held for use in the supply of services or for administrative purposes, are stated in the 
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  

 Properties in the course of construction for supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less 
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing 
costs capitalised in accordance with the company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to 
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended 
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the 
assets are ready for their intended use.   

 Freehold land is not depreciated.   

 Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses.   

1.12.1. Depreciation: 

 Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and 
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method.   

 The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective 
basis.

 Estimated useful lives of property, plant & equipment is as specified below. Residual value is taken 
at 5%. 

 Particulars  Useful lives

 Building   3 years to 30 years

 Computer equipment   3 years

 Server    6 years

 Plant and Equipment*   10 to 15 years
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      Particulars  Useful lives

   -  Solar Power Plant :  25 years 

 Roads :  5 years

 Pipeline : 30 years

 Office equipment : 5 years

 Furniture and fixtures* : 10 years

 *- Based on the evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best 
represent the period over which the management expects to use the assets. Hence, the useful lives for 
these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.   

1.13. Intangible Assets  

 Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis.   

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses.   

1.13.1. Derecognition of intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised 
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

  
1.13.2. Useful lives of intangible assets 

 Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows: 

     Particulars  Useful lives

 Right of Way  Indefinite

 Computer Software 6 years  

1.14. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets   

 At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 
intangible assets with finite life, to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.  

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 

  
 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 

amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
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 When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of 
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

  
1.15. Inventories 
  
 Inventories that comprise of stores and spares (which qualify as inventories) are stated at the lower of 

cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average basis. Net 
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of 
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.  

  
1.16. Provisions 
  
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

  
 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the 
time value of money is material). 

  
 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle, a provision is expected to be recovered 

from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

  
1.16.1. Onerous contracts 

 Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An 
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received from the contract. 

  
1.17. Financial Instruments 
  
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instruments. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value 
on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.  

  
1.17.1. Financial assets 

 All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date 
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery 
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.  

  
 All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or 

fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.  
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1.17.2. Classification of financial assets 

 Financial assets at amortised cost

 Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held 
within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

 Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial 
assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised 
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

  
1.17.3. Financial liabilities 

 Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.   

1.17.4 . Effective interest method 

 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of 
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through 
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying 
amount on initial recognition.   

1.17.5 . Impairment of financial assets 

 The company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial 
assets measured at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses 
with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all 
contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The 
company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument 
through the expected life of that financial instrument.  

 The company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the 
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly 
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since 
initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an 
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the 
life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default 
occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are 
predicted over the next 12 months.

 If the company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss 
model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to 
the previous period, the company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected 
credit losses. 
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 When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, the company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected 
life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make 
that assessment, the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument 
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of 
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without 
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 

 For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result 
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 , the company always measures the loss 
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.  

 Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, 
the company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit 
loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit 
loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. 

 The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally 
applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.   

1.17.6 . Derecognition of financial assets 

 The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the company 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
If the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 
borrowing for the proceeds received.   

 On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised 
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal 
of that financial asset. 

 On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the company retains an 
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the company allocates the previous carrying 
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing 
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts 
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no 
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and 
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income 
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or 
loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part 
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. 

1.18. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 The company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into 
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original 
maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash 
equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 
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1.19. Trade Receivables 

 Trade receivables are recognised initially at their transaction price and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using effect interest rate method, less provision for impairment.  

1.20. Trade & other payables 

 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end 
of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 
days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is 
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

1.21. Investment properties 

 Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

 The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of 
original construction, based on the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 
using the straight-line method.  The management believes that these estimated useful lives are 
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. 

 Though the company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value 
of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based either on the latest 
available information based on ‘stamp duty – annual statement of rates’ applicable to the area in 
which the land is situated, market comparison approach or on periodical evaluation performed by an 
external independent valuer. 

 Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in 
profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

1.22. Earnings per Share 

 Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The 
Company does not have any potentially dilutive securities. 

1.23. Dividends 

 Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no 
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at 
the end of the reporting period. 

1.24. Rounding of amounts 

 All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the neares 
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.  
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 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note No. 2.1 -Right of use Assets    

Description of Assets

Description of Assets

Land

Land

Building

Building

Total

Total

I. Gross Block     
Balance as at 1 April, 2022   998.65    254.76    1,253.41 
Additions  on account of adoption of Ind AS 116   -      -      -   
Decrease due to remeasurement of lease liabilities   -      -    - 
Disposals or classified as held for sale   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31st March , 2023   998.65    254.76    1,253.41 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for
 the year 2022-23     
Balance as at 1 April, 2022 251.28    154.82    406.15 
Depreciation expense for the period  83.22    47.97    131.19 
Eliminated on disposal of assets   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31st  March, 2023   334.50    202.84    537.34 
Net block (I-II)     
Balance as at March 31, 2023   664.15    51.92    716.07 
Balance as on 31st March 2022  747.37    99.89    847.26 

I. Gross Block     
Balance as at 1 April, 2021   998.65    268.77    1,267.42 
Additions  on account of adoption of Ind AS 116  -    -     -   
Decrease due to remeasurement of lease liabilities  -     14.01   14.01 
Disposals or classified as held for sale  -   -     -   
Balance as at 31st March , 2022  998.65   254.76   1,253.41 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for 
the year 2021-22     
Balance as at 1 April, 2021   167.48   106.90  274.38 
Depreciation expense for the period   83.80    47.97    131.77 
Eliminated on disposal of assets   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31st  March, 2022   251.28    154.87    406.15 

Net block (I-II)     
Balance as at March 31, 2022  747.37    99.89   847.26
Balance as on 31st March 2021  831.17   161.87    993.04 

Note No. 2.2 - Capital Work In Progress

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Unallocated Capital Expenditure 379.38 155.41
     
 Total    379.38  155.41 
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  In lakhs

  In lakhs

  In lakhs



 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of   

Capital Work in progress Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years Total

Project in progress        263.27     107.71     8.40              -      379.38 

                  TOTAL        263.27    107.71     8.40           -     379.38 

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:  

 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of   

Capital Work in progress Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years Total

Project in progress        119.53      10.88        -            25.00    155.41 

               TOTAL         119.53     10.88      0.00       25.00  155.41 
  In lakhs   In lakhs 

 Note No. 3 - Investment Property

Description of Assets Land Building Total

I. Gross Block     
Balance as at 1 April, 2022   5.17    3.00    8.17 
Additions relating to acquisitions  - -  -   
Disposals or classified as held for sale   -         -    - 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023   5.17    3.00    8.17 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for the
 year 2022-23     
Balance as at 1 April, 2022   -      0.84  0.84 
Depreciation expense for the year    -      0.12 0.12
Eliminated on disposal of assets   -      -      -   
Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31 March , 2023   -      0.96    0.96 
Net block (I-II)     
Balance as at 31 March , 2023  5.17  2.04   7.21 
Balance as on 31st March 2022   5.17  2.16   7.33 

Description of Assets Land Building Total

I.Gross Block     
Balance as at 1 April, 2021  5.17    3.00    8.17 
Additions relating to acquisitions   -      -      -   
Disposals or classified as held for sale   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31 March, 2022  5.17    3.00    8.17 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for 
the year 2021-22 
Balance as at 1 April, 2021   -      0.72    0.72 
Depreciation expense for the year    -      0.12    0.12 
Eliminated on disposal of assets   -      -      -   
Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31 March, 2022   -      0.84    0.84
Net block (I-II)     
Balance as on 31st March 2022   5.17    2.16   7.33
Balance as on 31st March 2021   5.17    2.28   7.45 

Notes:     
1) Assets pledged as security:- Nil ( Previous year -Nil).     
2) There were no Income earned or expenditure incurred on the above Investment Property other than 
depreciation mentioned above. The fair value of the Property as per Valuation report dated 04-04-2019 issued by 
Mr. Feroz N Raaj, Government  Approved Valuer is   22.11 lakhs.     

  In lakhs
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  In lakhs

  In lakhs

 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

  In lakhs

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:



 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note No. 4 - Other Intangible Assets 

Description of Assets Right of Way

Right of Way

Software

Software

Total

Intangible Assets   
I. Cost or deemed cost   
Balance as at 1 April, 2022   755.51    192.27    947.79 
Additions   1.62      2.82    4.44 
Disposals or classified as held for sale   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31 March, 2023   757.13   195.09    952.23 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for 
the year 2022-23   
Balance as at 1 April, 2022   -      45.15    45.15 
Amortisation expense for the year    -      30.52    30.52 
Eliminated on disposal of assets   -      -      -   
Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31 March, 2023   -      75.67   75.67 
Net block (I-II)   
Balance as on 31st March, 2023   757.13  119.43   876.56 
Balance as on 31st March 2022   755.51  147.13   902.64 

Description of Assets Total

Intangible Assets   
I. Cost or deemed cost   
Balance as at 1 April, 2021   755.51    157.44    912.96 
Additions   -      34.83   34.83 
Disposals or classified as held for sale   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31 March, 2022   755.51    192.27    947.79 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for 
the year 2021-22   
Balance as at 1 April, 2021   -      16.05    16.05 
Amortisation expense for the year    -      29.10    29.10 
Eliminated on disposal of assets   -      -      -   
Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale   -      -      -   
Balance as at 31 March, 2022   -      45.15    45.15 
Net block (I-II)   
Balance as on 31st March 2022   755.51    147.13    902.64 
Balance as on 31st March 2021   755.51    141.40    896.91 

Notes: 
1) The Company holds a Right of Way for laying Pipeline between Mangalore and Bangalore via Hassan. 

The cost of acquiring the right has been capitalised as Intangible Assets. The right is an indefinite(perpetual)  
right with no stipulation over the period of validity. Hence the same is not amortised.    

  In lakhs

  In lakhs
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Non-Current       
Unsecured, considered good       
 Security Deposits   252.33    249.60 
 Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity   -     502.67 
Loans having significant increase in credit risk/ credit impaired    -      -   
 Total    252.33    752.28
 
Current       
Unsecured, considered good 
      Security Deposits    1.57    1.57 
      Interest accrued On Deposits    1,635.91    1,860.71 
Loans having significant increase in credit risk/ credit impaired    -      -   

 Total    1,637.48    1,862.28 

Note 5 - Other Financial Assets

March 31, 2022

As at

Note 6 - Income Taxes   
  Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:  

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Current tax for the years  2,870.65 2,028.75
Current tax for Prior years   (31.07)   (12.01) 
Deferred taxes/ Liability  40.45 94.97

Income tax expense   2,880.03    2,111.71 

March 31, 2022

Year ended

 A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate 
to the income before income taxes is summarized below:      
       
 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:      

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Profit before income taxes   11,351.72    8,139.99 

Enacted tax rates in India 25.17% 25.17%

Computed expected tax expense  2,857.00 2,048.67

Effect of non-deductible expenses  54.12 60.91

Effect of timing differences    (40.47)   (80.83)

Income tax expense 2,870.65 2,028.75

March 31, 2022

Year ended

The applicable Income tax rate for financial year 2022-23 & 2021-22 is 25.168% as available U/s 115BAA  - 
Tax on income of Certain Domestic companies as notified as per taxation Laws (Amendment) Act 2019.       
      

  In lakhs

  In lakhs
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  In lakhs



The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of March 31, 2023, 
and March 31, 2022 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Income tax assets   16.78    37.76 

Current income tax liabilities (Net)   -      -   

      

Net current income tax assets/ (liability) at the end    16.78    37.76 

March 31, 2022

As at

The gross movement in the current income tax asset/ (liability) for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 
March 31, 2022  is as follows:      

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the beginning   37.76    268.39 

Income tax paid   3,018.31    1,906.33 

Income tax refund received   (199.71)  (120.33)   

Current income tax expense   (2,870.65)   (2,028.75)

Current income tax for Prior years   31.07    12.12

Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the end   16.78    37.76 

March 31, 2022

Year ended

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
are as follows:      

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Deferred income tax assets      

Gratuity payable to employees   36.78    31.72 

Compensated absences    52.11   44.86 

Deferred tax on account of leased assets    53.87    46.37 

Total deferred income tax assets   142.76    122.95 

Deferred income tax liabilities 

Depreciation impact on PPE, Inv. Property and intangible assets   (1,674.36)   (1,614.59)

Others    -      -   

Total deferred income tax liabilities    (1,674.36)   (1,614.59)

Deferred income tax assets after set off   (1,531.59)   (1,491.63)

March 31, 2022

As at

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as the Company has a legally enforceable right to 
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.      

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all 
of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is 
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences 
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected 
future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical 
taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax 
assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible 
differences.      

  In lakhs

  In lakhs

  In lakhs
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 
2022, are as follows:      

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Net deferred income tax asset at the beginning   (1,491.63)   (1,397.10)
Credits / (charge) relating to temporary differences   (40.45)   (94.97)
Temporary differences on other comprehensive income   0.49   0.44 

Net deferred income tax asset ( liability ) at the end   (1,531.59)   (1,491.63)

March 31, 2022

 Note 7 - Other Non Current Assets 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good       
 Capital advances       
  Against Land    3.10    9.71 
  Advances other than Capital advances       
  Prepaid Expenses    59.72    76.55 
  Others       
  Court Deposit    1,447.03    1,447.03 
 Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk /Credit impaired  -     -

Total  1,509.85      1,533.29 

March 31, 2022

As at

Notes:-       
Upon Payment of Allotment Consideration the Company has been given possession of land at three different locations. The Company 
is yet to enter into lease cum sale Agreement with KIADB for these lands. Hence the amount is not yet capitalised as freehold land.      
       

 Note 8 - Inventories 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 (At lower of cost and net realisable value)       

  Stores and spares at site    250.44    262.13 

 Total    250.44    262.13 

March 31, 2022

 Note 9 - Trade Receivables 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Trade receivables, unsecured, considered good    1,740.73    1,465.65 
Trade receivables, Which have significant increase in credit Risk   -        -   
Trade receivables, -Credit Impaired     -    -
 (A)    1,740.73    1,465.65 
 Less: Allowances for credit losses    -      -   
  (B)    -      -   
 Total (A-B)    1,740.73    1,465.65 

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs

  In lakhs

  In lakhs

 Note 7.1 - Non Current Tax Assets

  In lakhs

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Non Current Tax Assets (Net)   16.78   37.76

 Total  16.78   37.76  

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs
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Trade receivables - Billed      

Undisputed trade receivables – 

considered good   1,627.38    37.51    6.61    19.74    49.48  1,740.73 

Undisputed trade receivables – 

which have significant increase in 

credit risk    -      -      -      -      -      -   

Undisputed trade receivables –

 credit impaired    -      -      -      -      -      -   

Disputed trade receivables – 

considered good    -      -      -      -      -   

Disputed trade receivables – 

which have significant increase in 

credit risk    -      -      -      -      -      -   

Disputed trade receivables – 

credit impaired    -      -      -      -      -      -   

  Total 1,627.38    37.51    6.61    19.74    49.48  1,740.73 

Trade receivables - Billed      

Undisputed trade receivables – 

considered good    1,305.47    7.70    18.81    23.75  109.92 1,465.65 

 Undisputed trade receivables – 

which have significant increase in

 credit risk    -      -      -      -      -      -   

 Undisputed trade receivables – 

credit impaired    -      -      -      -      -      -   

 Disputed trade receivables –

 considered good    -      -      -      -      -      -   

 Disputed trade receivables –

 which have significant increase 

in credit risk    -      -      -      -      -      -   

 Disputed trade receivables – 

credit impaired    -      -      -      -      -        

  Total 1,305.47    7.70    18.81    23.75  109.92 1,465.65

Ageing for trade receivables - billed – current outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:      

Ageing for trade receivables - billed – current outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:      

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

Particulars

  In lakhs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment     

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment     

More than 
3 years 

More than 
3 years 

Lees Than 
6 Months

Lees Than 
6 Months

6 months
- 1 year

6 months
- 1 year

1 - 2 years 

1 - 2 years 

2 - 3 years 

2 - 3 years 

Total

Total

  In lakhs
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

 Note 10- Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Cash on hand    0.09    0.28 
Balances with banks:  
    In current accounts    111.70    0.77
    In deposit accounts    42,009.03    46,224.38

 Total    111.79  1.05 

March 31, 2022

 The deposits maintained by the company with banks comprise time deposit, which can be withdrawn by the 
company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.        

*Fixed deposit  held as security against performance guarantee issued to PNGRB  vide PBG No 33110IGL0000420   

 Note 11 - Bank Balance other than above       

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Balances with banks:
 Bank Deposits for original maturity more than 3 months upto 12 months
 *Balance held as security against performance and other guarantee 
 
 Total

March 31, 2022

 Note 12 - Other Current Assets 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good       
 Advances other than Capital advances       
  Prepaid Expenses    85.68    87.87 
  Advance for Expenses     0.90    2.40 
  Advance to Employees & Others    0.87  5.11   
Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit 
 risk/Credit  impaired     -      -   

  Total    87.45    95.38 

March 31, 2022

 Note 13 - Assets classified as held for sale 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Project Surplus held for sale    333.27    333.27 
  333.27    333.27 
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale  -  -
 - -

March 31, 2022

The Company intends to dispose of surplus materials used for the pipeline laying project, it no longer utilizes in 
the next 12 months. These materials are located at various plants and were purchased for use during 
construction of pipeline. Efforts are underway to dispose of the project surplus materials to Oil Companies. The 
Management of the Company expects that, the fair value (less cost to sell) is higher than the carrying amount.      

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs

  In lakhs

  In lakhs
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  42,822.98              41,506.36
     639.00                   669.88    

43,461.98              42,176.24 



Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 14 - Equity Share capital    

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Authorised       
60,00,00,000 (P.Y.- 60,00,00,000) equity shares of
  10 each with voting rights    60,000.00    60,000.00       

Total    60,000.00    60,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up       
54,87,07,264 (P.Y.-54,87,07,264) equity shares of
  10 each with voting rights    54,870.73    54,870.73 

Total   54,870.73    54,870.73 

March 31, 2022

 Notes:     
 (i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period:     
    

  Opening Balance   Fresh Issue   Other Changes    Closing Balance 
       
Year Ended March 31, 2023      
 No. of Shares   54,87,07,264  -    -  54,87,07,264 
 Amount (  In lakhs)    54,870.73  -   -  54,870.73  
       
Year Ended March 31, 2022      
 No. of Shares   54,87,07,264    -      -      54,87,07,264 
 Amount (  In lakhs) 54,870.73    -      -      54,870.73  

 (ii) Detail of the rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares :       

With respect to equity shares, company has only one class of equity share, having a par value of   10/-. Each 
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of 
the equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to number of equity shares held by the shareholders.      

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:       

Particulars

Particulars

As at March 
31, 2023

As at March 
31, 2023

 Equity shares with voting rights:       

 Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd    27,43,33,672    27,43,33,672

 % of holding  49.996% 49.996%

 Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd     27,43,33,672    27,43,33,672 

  % of holding  49.996% 49.996%

 Equity shares with voting rights:       

 Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received Cash Nil Nil
 - -

As at March 
31, 2022

As at March 
31, 2022

Aggregate Number of Shares

 (iv) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment 
being received in cash for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date       

 Equity shares with voting rights     

  In lakhs
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Retained earnings     3,486.37    3,082.13

Total    3,486.37    3,082.13

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Promoter Name
As at March 31, 2023

Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd  274333672 49.996% 274333672  49.996% -   

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd 274333672 49.996% 274333672 49.996%              -  

As at March 31, 2022
 Shares held by promoters 

 No. of 
shares

% of total
Shares

 No. of 
shares

% of total
Shares

% Change 
 during the year

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 are as follows 

Promoter Name As at March 31, 2022

Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd  274333672 49.996% 274333672  49.996% -   

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd 274333672 49.996% 274333672 49.996%                -  

As at March 31, 2021
 Shares held by promoters 

 No. of 
shares

% of total
Shares

 No. of 
shares

% of total
Shares

% Change 
 during the year

 Note 14.1 - Other equity 

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

14.1.1 - Retained earnings 

Balance at beginning of the year    3,082.13  5,834.48  

Profit for the year   8,471.69    6,028.27

Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of 
defined benefit obligation net of income tax     (1.45)  (1.31)

Payments of dividends     (8,066.00)    (8,779.32)

Balance at the end of the year    3,486.37    3,082.13   

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 Note 15 - Trade payables 

Non-Current       
Trade payable for goods & services       
 (a) Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises    -      -   
 (b) Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises   -      -   
Total    -      -   
Current       
Trade payable for goods & services       
 (a) Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises   41.23    47.62
 (b) Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises   388.61   356.76 
  Total    429.84   404.38 

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(V)   Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 are as follows

  In lakhs

  In lakhs

  In lakhs
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 Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows: 

Trade Payable

(i)  MSME    -      41.23    -      -      -      41.23 

(ii)  Others   -      215.38    -    0.36    12.06    227.80 
 (iii)  Disputed Dues-MSME   -      -      -      -      -      -   
 (iv)  Disputed Dues-Others   -      -      -      -      -      -   
       
  Total   -      256.61    -    0.36    12.06    269.03 
  Accrued Expenses         160.81 
Total Trade Payable         429.84 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment     

More than 
3 years 

Not Due
 

Lees Than
- 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years Total

 Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows: 

Trade Payable

(i)  MSME    -      47.62    -      -      -      47.62 

(ii)  Others   -      142.95  0.54    0.42    11.81    155.73 
(iii) Disputed Dues-MSME   -      -      -      -      -      -   
(iv) Disputed Dues-Others   -      -      -      -      -      -   
  Total   -      190.58    0.54    0.42    11.81    203.35 
  Accrued Expenses         201.02 
 Total  Trade  Payable        404.38  

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment     

More than 
3 years 

Not Due
 

Lees Than
- 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years Total

Non-Current          
Deposits received from Dealers    0.66    0.66 

 Retention Money for capital supplies / services    16.75    16.75 
 Payables for capital supplies/services    640.28    640.28 

Total    657.69    657.69 

Current       
 Deposits received from Dealers    15.29    16.64

Retention Money for capital supplies / services    176.95    152.24
Earnest Money Deposit    32.25    32.35 
Dues to Employees & Others   3.72  8.19 
Advance from Customers    1.06   1.06  
Payables for capital supplies/services    93.31    147.46

Total    322.58    357.94

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

  In lakhs
 Note 16 - Other Financial Liabilities 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

  In lakhs

  In lakhs
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Particulars
March 31, 2023

 Statutory dues       

  Taxes payable (other than income taxes)   792.42  559.52 

 Total   792.42    559.52

March 31, 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

 Note 16.1 -Lease liabilities 

Non-Current 
 Lease liabilities    810.59    930.14 

 Total    810.59    930.14

Current 
 Lease liabilities     119.54    101.36
 Total    119.54  101.36

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 Note 17 - Provisions 

Non-Current           
Provision for employee benefits       

  Provision for compensated absences    174.46    155.82 
  Provision for gratuity    140.57    121.20 

Total   315.03    277.02 

Current       
 Provision for employee benefits       
  Provision for compensated absences   32.61    22.43 
  Provision for gratuity    5.58    4.82 
  Provision for Performance Incentives    72.30    68.55 
Total     110.49  95.80 

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 Details of movement in provisions: 

Balance at April 1, 2021   112.11    154.00    61.76
Additional provisions recognised    19.20    38.84   68.55
Amounts used (ie incurred and charged against 
the provision) during the period   (5.30) (14.59)   (48.51)
 Unused amounts reversed during the period  -   -      (13.25)
 Balance at March 31, 2022   126.01    178.25   68.55 

 Balance at April 1, 2022   126.01   178.25    68.55
 Additional provisions recognised    21.24   45.60    72.30
 Amounts used (ie incurred and charged 
against the provision) during the period    (1.11)   (16.79)   (66.52)
Unused amounts reversed during the period    -     - (2.02)
Balance at March  31, 2023   146.14   207 06 72.31 

Particulars
Gratuity

Provision
Compensated

absences
Performance

Incentives

Note 18 - Other Current Liabilities

  In lakhs

  In lakhs

  In lakhs

  In lakhs
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 19 - Revenue from operations

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Sale of Services    
Freight Charges for Transportation of Petroleum Products    13,988.86   10,135.09 

 Dispatch charges   188.78   154.17

 Other Operating Income     11.50   16.29 

Total    14,189.14   10,305.55 

March 31, 2022

 Notes:     

I)  The Freight Income is recognized based on the pipeline transportation tariff fixed by Petroleum & Natural 
Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB). 

  PNGRB vide order No. TO/2021-22/02, dated 31.12.2021 Fixed the pipeline tariff by benchmarking against 
alternate mode of transportie rail at a level of 75% railway tariff on a train load basis for equivalent rail 
distance along the pipeline route. Freight income for the period 01.04.2022 to 31.3.2023 is recongnized 
based on order No. TO/2021-22/02 dated 31.12.2021.

ii)  Dispatch Charges  of  Current Year is reduced  by   22.91 Lakhs with respect to impact of Cum-Tax  
Invoices ( inclusive GST) for current year .    

iii)  Earning in Foreign Currency   Nil ( Previous Year    Nil)     

 Note 20 - Other income 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Interest Income  
 On Financial Assets at Amortised Cost    2,600.37   2,383.27 
  On Income Tax Refund   -     76.98 
Insurance Claim   -     16.97 
Other Miscellaneous Incomes    38.15   32.48 

Total  2,638.52   2,509.70 
Interest income comprises of:        

Interest on Term Deposit    2,591.33   2,375.74 
 Interest on Security Deposit    9.04   7.53 

Total - Interest income   2,600.37   2,383.27 

March 31, 2022

 Note 21 - Employee benefit expense 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 Salaries including Bonus etc  747.64   671.76  

 Salaries including Bonus etc.  for HPCL Staff on Deputation *   149.15   189.74 

 Contributions to provident fund   37.48   34.18 

 Gratuity   19.30   17.45 

 Staff welfare expense   3.87   7.49 

  Total  957.44   920.62 

March 31, 2022

 * Salary of HPCL Staff on deputation represents amounts debited by HPCL. The above amount is  reduced 
by 5 %  of CSR expense towards CSR admin overhead of   9.68 lakhs  ( P.Y :-  11.50 lakhs)    

  In lakhs

  In lakhs

  In lakhs 
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Interest on Income Tax  11.71   -   

Finance Charges on Lease   92.84   100.73

Total   104.55   100.73 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

 Note 22 - Finance costs 

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

  In lakhs

 Note 23 - Other expenses 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 Power & Fuel    1,798.17   1,117.01 

 Repair & Maintenance on Plant and Machinery    63.63   71.62 

 Repair & Maintenance on Buildings    8.70   4.20 

 Repair & Maintenance - Electricals, ROW & Others    181.91   142.33 

 Operations and maintenance - Contract Manpower   130.93   131.65 

 Stores & Spares Consumed   58.69   50.44 

 Insurance Premium    170.05   208.63 

 Painting of Station Pipings And equipment's   4.97   15.93 

 Watch and Wards    356.32   350.81 

 Lease Rent   3.28   11.61 

 Compensation to CA(LAO) Staff    4.33   4.17 

 Communication Expense   28.95   27.28 

 Net Loss on sale of Fixed Assets   -     0.39 

 CIPL CAT & DCVG Survey   0.76   -   

 Printing & Stationery   5.46   8.01 

 Professional and Consultancy Charges (Refer Note 23A below)   16.10   17.04 

 Rates and Taxes    38.04   30.15 

 Training, Recruitment, Seminar and Mock Drill Expenses    14.75   14.35 

 Travelling and Conveyance    52.53   40.46 

 Vehicle Hire Charges    91.48   85.09 

 Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR) under 

section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.   203.33   241.60 

 Advertisement for Public Tender   9.21   1.78 

 Bad Debts Written   95.53   -   

 Other Expenses   37.15   59.11 

 Total   3,374.27   2,633.66 

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs

 Note 23A - Legal and professional charges include payment to auditors  
           (excluding GST)  

 As auditors     

  Statutory audit   2.50   2.25 

  For Taxation matters      0.70   0.70 

  For Company Law matters    -      -   

  For other services    1.38   1.31 

Total   4.58   4.26 

       

81

Petronet MHB Limited 25th Annual Report 2022-23

  In lakhs



Change in benefit obligations     
Benefit obligations at the beginning 126.02 112.12
Service cost 10.34 9.95
Interest expense 8.96 7.50
Curtailment gain   -      -   
Transfer of obligation   -      -   
Remeasurements - Actuarial (gains)/ losses 1.94 1.75
Benefits paid   (1.11) (5.30)       
Benefit obligations at the end 146.15 126.02
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning    -      -   
Interest income   -      -   
Transfer of assets    -      -   
Remeasurements- Return on plan assets excluding amounts included 
in interest income   -      -   
Contributions   -      -   
Benefits paid    -      -       
Fair value of plan assets at the end   -      - 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

a.  Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity     
The following tables set out the gratuity plans (unfunded) and the amounts recognized in the Company's 
financial statements as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:     

Note 24 - Employee Benefits      

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amount for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
under employee benefit expenses.     

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Service cost 10.34 9.95
Net interest on the defined benefit obligation 8.96 7.50
 Net gratuity cost   19.30    17.45

March 31, 2022

Amount for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 recognized in statement of other comprehensive 
income:     

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset)     
 Actuarial (gains) / losses     
 (Gain)/loss due to change in demographic assumptions    -      -   
 (Gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions   (4.05)   (6.75)
 (Gain)/loss due to experience adjustments 5.98 8.50
(Return) / loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in the 
net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)   -      -   
    1.94    1.75 

March 31, 2022

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are set out below:     

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 Discount rate 7.50% 7.25%
Salary escalation rate  5.00% 5.00%

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 

The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry 
standards. The discount rate is based on the government securities yield.    
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
b. Long-term employee benefits -Earned and Sick Leave Encashment     

The following tables set out the leave plans and the amounts recognized in the Company's financial statements 
as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 Change in benefit obligations     
Benefit obligations at the beginning 178.25 153.99
Service cost  17.35 16.37
Interest expense 12.09 9.91
Curtailment gain   -      -   
Transfer of obligation   -      -   
Remeasurements - Actuarial (gains)/ losses  16.16   12.57 
Benefits paid   (16.79)   (14.59)

Benefit obligations at the end 207.06 178.25
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning -   - 
Interest income  -   - 
Transfer of assets  -   - 
Remeasurements- Return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in interest income  -   - 
Contributions  -   - 
Benefits paid  -   - 

Fair value of plan assets at the end   -      -   

March 31, 2022

Amount for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss under employee benefit expenses.     

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 Service cost 17.35 16.37
 Net interest on the defined benefit obligation 12.09 9.91
 Actuarial (gains) / losses     
      (Gain)/loss due to changes in demographic assumptions 0.00 0.00
      (Gain)/loss due to changes in financial assumptions   (5.10)   (8.73)
      (Gain)/loss from Plan experience   21.27   21.30
 Curtailment gain  - -

 Net leave encashment cost    45.61    38.85

March 31, 2022

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 
2022 are set out below:     

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 Discount rate  7.50% 7.25%
 Salary escalation rate  5.00% 5.00% 

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
c. Defined Contribution Plans-Provident Fund & NPS     
The Company makes contribution to Provident Fund which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. 
Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the 
benefits. The Company recognised during year ending March 31, 2023   . 37.48 lakhs (Year ended 31 March, 2022   
 34.18 lakhs) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Employee Benefits 
Expense. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.    

The Company made contribution to NPS @ 10% of Basic salary at the option of the employee . The company made 
contribution during the year ending March 31, 2023, for   28.11 lakhs (Year ended 31 March, 2022    26.47 lakhs ) for   
an optional National Pension Scheme (NPS).

Note 25 - Financials Instruments    
Financial instruments by category   
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023  were as follows:   

Particulars

Assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 10)  111.79   -     -     -     -     111.79   111.79 

Bank Balances other than Cash and cash 

equivalents (Refer Note 11)  43,461.98   -     -     -     -     43,461.98   43,461.98 

Trade receivables (Refer Note 9)  1,740.73   -     -     -     -     1,740.73   1,740.73 

Other financial assets (Refer Note 5)  1,889.81   -     -     -     -     1,889.81   1,889.81 

Total  47,204.31   -     -     -     -     47,204.31   47,204.31 

Liabilities:       

Trade payables (Refer Note 15)  429.84   -     -     -     -     429.84   429.84 

Lease liabilities (Refer Note 16.1)  930.13   -     -     -     -     930.13   930.13 

Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 16)  980.27   -     -     -     -     980.27   980.27 

Total  2,340.24   -     -     -     -     2,340.24   2,340.24 

Amortised 
cost

Financial assets/
liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 

Designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory
Equity 

instruments 
designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Financial assets/
liabilities at fair

value through OCI

Mandatory

Total 
carrying 

value

Total 
fair 

value

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 were as follows:   

Particulars

Assets:       

 Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 10)  1.05   -     -     -     -     1.05   1.05 

Bank Balances other than Cash and cash 

equivalents (Refer Note 11)  42,176.24   -     -     -     -     42,176.24   42,176.24 

Trade receivables (Refer Note 9)  1,465.65   -     -     -     -     1,465.65   1,465.65 

Other financial assets (Refer Note 5)  2,614.55   -     -     -     -     2,614.55   2,614.55 

Total  46,257.49   -     -     -     -     46,257.49   46,257.49 

Liabilities:       

Trade payables (Refer Note 15)  404.38   -     -     -     -     404.38   404.38 

Lease liabilities (Refer Note 16.1)  1,031.50       1,031.50   1,031.50 

Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 16)  1,015.63   -     -     -     -     1,015.63   1,015.63 

Total  2,451.51   -     -     -     -     2,451.51   2,451.51 

Amortised 
cost

Financial assets/
liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 

Designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory
Equity 

instruments 
designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Financial assets/
liabilities at fair

value through OCI

Mandatory

Total 
carrying 

value

Total 
fair 

value

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 

84

Petronet MHB Limited 25th Annual Report 2022-23



 Basic Earnings per share    Per Share    Per Share 

    From continuing operations   1.54   1.10  

    From discontinuing operations    -      -   

 Total basic earnings per share    1.54    1.10

  Diluted Earnings per share      

    From continuing operations    1.54    1.10 

    From discontinuing operations    -      -   

 Diluted earnings per share    1.54  1.10 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Financial risk management        

Financial risk factors        

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse 
effects on its financial performance.        

Market risk       

The Company has a small amount of international exposure on account of availing services. The exchange rate 
between rupee and dollar has changed in recent years and may fluctuate in future. However, the impact of this 
on the Company may not be significant.        

The following table analyses foreign currency risk from financial instruments as on March 31, 2023 and March 
31, 2022.       

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents   -      -      -      -      -      -   
Trade payables   -      -      -      -      -      -   
Net assets / (liabilities)   -      -      -      -      -      -   

As at March 31, 2022

U.S. dollars U.S. dollarsEuro Euro Total Total

Credit risk       

  "Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The 
maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs.Nil  
and Rs. Nil as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, respectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured 
and are derived from revenue earned from customers. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses 
expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss.

  Based on the past experience, the Company has negligible level of bad debts, as the receivables are mainly 
from 4 CPSE Customers with whom the Company has a long-term relationship. In practice, expected credit 
losses are so immaterial that no calculations or loss reserves are required at all. The Company has however, 
provided for expected credit loss based on lifetime credit loss in respect of old doubtful/disputed receivables. "     

    

Liquidity risk       

  The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated 
from operations. The company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company believes that the working capital 
is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. 

 Note 26 - Earning Per Share 

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 In lakhs 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

     The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings 
per share are as follows:      

Basic earnings per share      

Particulars

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company  8,470.24    6,026.96  

 Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon   -      -   

 Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic  8,470.24   6,026.96 
earnings per share    

Profit for the year on discontinued operations used in the calculation  -   -   
 of basic earnings per share from discontinued operations 

 Profits used in the calculation of basic earnings per share from  8,470.24   6,026.96  
continuing operations  

Weighted average number of equity shares    54,87,07,264 54,87,07,264

Earnings per share from continuing operations - Basic ( )    1.54    1.10  

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic earnings   8,470.24    6,026.96 
per share   

 Add: Interest expense and exchange fluctuation on convertible    -      -   
bonds (net) - adjusted for attributable taxes  

 Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of diluted    8,470.24   6,026.96 
 earnings per share  

 Profit for the year on discontinued operations used in the    -      -   
calculation of diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations  

 Profits used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share from     8,470.24   6,026.96 
continuing operations  

Weighted average number of equity shares    54,87,07,264    54,87,07,264

Earnings per share from continuing operations - Diluted ( )    1.54    1.10

The Company does not have any Instruments (including contingently issuable shares) that could potentially 
dilute basic earnings per share in the future, hence the Weighted average number of equity shares used in 
the calculation of Diluted EPS is same as that of Basic EPS.     

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 

 Diluted earnings per share 

The diluted earnings per share has been computed by dividing the Net profit after tax available for Equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares, after giving dilutive effect of the outstanding 
Warrants, Stock options and Convertible bonds for the respective periods, if any.  
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 Note 27 - Related party disclosures 

 Key management personnel (KMP)    Shri. Venkatesh Madhava Rao - Chairman   
             (Chairman effective 21st March 2023 )   
    Shri. Anurag Sharma - Chairman   
            (resigned effective 1st March 2023)   
    Shri. Mukundan V. M. -Managing Director   
    Smt. Pomila Jaspal-Director   
    Shri. R. Sridhar - Director   
    Shri. Subodh Batra - Director   
    Shri. Anuj Kumar Jain- Director   
    Shri. Rakesh Kaul  - Director   
             (resigned effective 1st  July 2022)   
   Shri. Debdulal Adhikari - Director   
            (Appointment effective 12 July 2022 )   
    Shri. M. Shyamprasad Kamath    
             (Appointment effective 29 March 2023 )   
    Shri. Chandan Kumar Das - CFO(KMP)   
    Shri.Sachin Jayaswal - Company Secretary(KMP)   
     
 Ultimate Holding Company     Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited   
     
 Fellow Subsidiary     Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited   
     
 Investing Party     Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited   

 Nature of relationship Names of the related parties 

Transaction between Related Partries
March 31, 2023

 Income       

 Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited       

 Freight Charges   7,950.34   7,438.53 

  Sale of  Project Surplus Pipes/ Empty Barrels   -     35.94 

  Office Administravtive Service Cost Received   10.02   -   

 Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd      

 Freight Charges Received    308.63   431.93 

 Dispatch Charges Received    115.90   172.67 

 Rent for Lease of Pipeline Received    2.36   2.36 

 Power Charges-Received     7.89   15.82 

 PLC Modification and Cable Laying    1.98   -   

 Expense       

 Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited       

 Land Lease Rent - Paid    151.83   145.01 

 Server Hosting Rent -Paid   10.50   -   

 Deputation Salary & Allowances- Paid    187.42   237.47 

 Purchase of Lube oil   43.06   -   

 Reimbursement of Property Tax    25.21   -  

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs 
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Transaction between Related Partries
March 31, 2023

Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd  
   Power Charges Paid   362.83   270.51 
   Reimbursement of Expense Paid - CSR Expenditure    -     19.52 
   Reimbursement of Expense Paid - Motor Repair   0.16   -   

 **Remuneration paid to KMP (On Deputation)      
   Mukundan V M    75.81   66.01 
     
 Remuneration paid to KMP (others)      
   Chandan Kumar Das   32.19   28.52 
   Sachin Jayaswal   34.17   28.34 

March 31, 2022

* All the above supply & services are including  GST       
** - Remuneration to Managing Director represents amounts debited by HPCL for its Executive on deputation to 
the company and the entitlement released by PMHBL as per HPCL rules      

Balances outstanding at the end of the year
March 31, 2023

Trade Receivable      
  Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited      843.27   824.04 
  Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited     139.06   263.65 
 Trade Payables      
  Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited      91.19   86.48 
  Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited     -     24.00 
 Other Financial Assets (Security Deposits)      
  Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited      1.57   1.57 
 Other Financial Liabilities  (Retention Money )      
  Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited      1.29   -  

March 31, 2022

Note 28 - Leases    

The Company's Lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Building . The Company assesses 
whether a Contract contains a lease, at inception of a Contract. A contract is or contains , a lease if the contact 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration .To 
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset , the Company assesses 
whether: (I) the contract involves the use of an identified asset , (ii) the Company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to 
direct the use of the asset.    

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except  for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the 
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease.    

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which  comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 
cost less any lease incentive. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated Depreciation and 
impairment loss      

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over  the lease term 
of the underlying assets    

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 
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There is Change in the terms of lease payments of head office building as the lessor agreed not to increase the 
rent payable for two-year i.e. from 1 May 2021 to 30 April 2023. Therefore, the company remeasured the lease 
liability to reflect changes to the lease payments. The lease liability is reduced by   14.01 lakh . The company 
recognised the amount of remeasurement of lease liability of   14.01 Lakh as an adjustment to the right-of-use 
asset.    

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financing cash flows.       

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2023 :    

Particulars
Land

Balance as at April 1, 2022  747.37    99.89    847.26 
Assets Recognised on account of adoption of Ind AS 116  -      -      -   
Additions   -      -      -   
Decrease due to remeasurement of lease liabilities  -  - -
Depreciation 83.22    47.97   131.19

Balance as at March 31, 2023   664.15   51.92  716.07

Building 

Category of ROU

Total

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2022 :    

Particulars
Land

Balance as at April 1, 2021  831.17   161.87    993.04
Assets Recognised on account of adoption of Ind AS 116   -      -      -   
Additions   -      -      -   
Decrease due to remeasurement of lease liabilities   -    14.01    14.01  
Depreciation 83.80  47.97    131.77 

Balance as at March 31, 2022   747.37    99.89   847.26 

Building 

Category of ROU

Total

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense 
in the statement of Profit and Loss.    

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liability as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Non-current lease liabilities   810.59   930.14 

Current lease liabilities   119.54  101.36 

Total   930.13  1,031.50  

March 31, 2022

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31 2022 :

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning   1,031.50    1,133.21 
Additions   -      -   
Decrease due to remeasurement of lease liabilities   - (14.01)   
Finance cost accrued during the period   92.84 100.73 
Payment of lease liabilities    (194.21)  (188.43)

Balance at the end    930.13    1,031.50  

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 
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The table below provides details regarding contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023
and March 31 , 2022 on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 not later than one year    203.25   194.20 
 later than one year and not later than five years  610.94 652.31 
 later than five years  532.73 694.61

March 31, 2022

The table below provides details regarding Amounts recognised in profit and loss.    

Particulars
March 31, 2023

 Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets   131.19   131.77  
 Interest expense on lease liabilities    92.84   100.73  
 Expense relating to short-term leases    3.28   11.61 

March 31, 2022

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 amount to   194.21 
Lakhs &  188.43 Lakhs.      

Notes:     

i) The lease rentals in respect of the lands situated at Mangalore, Hasaan and Devengonthi are being paid 
based on the Minutes of Meeting with HPCL dated 17-03-2003. The lease agreements are yet to be 
formalised.    

ii) The lease rentals in respect of head office premises does not includes Fixed maintenance and Power 
backup charges for the purpose of payment of lease rent as being non lease component     

 Note 29 - Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)  

 Contingent liabilities  

 I. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt-with respect to:-      

Particulars
March 31, 2023

i) PMHBL v/s. Punj Lloyd Ltd (PLL) - Appeal Case lying with the  3,554.30  3,409.41
High Court of Karnataka, Bangalore against the order of City Civil 
Court Bangalore.and interim stay has been granted - The Company
 has deposited   1,400 lakhs as court deposit.    

 ii) PMHBL v/s. Punj Lloyd Ltd (PLL) - (Arbitration Case) – M/s. PLL 
filed Arbitration case against PMHBL in mainline pipe laying contract. 2,566.22    2,566.22 

iii) 127 Writ Petition cases filed by PMHBL at Hon’ble High Court of 
Karnataka, Bangalore against the order of Hon’ble District judge of  52.00    52.00
Bangalore Rural District for compensation enhancement cases filed 
by ROU land owners.The Company has deposited   26.00 lakhs 
as court deposit.    

 iv) 01Writ Petition case filed by PMHBL at Hon’ble High Court of 
Karnataka, Bangalore against the order of Hon’ble District judge    21.03    21.03
of Chickmagalur District for damages outside the ROU. The 
Company has deposited   21.03 lakhs as court deposit.   

    6,193.55    6,048.65 

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 
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 II.) Performance bank Guarantee:               
 Performance Bank Guarantee of  . 639 lakhs has been given by the company in favour of Petroleum &  

Natural Gas Regulatory Board towards 1% cost of the pipeline project as security deposit for meeting the 
quality of service obligations and requirement of PNGRB during operating phase. The Bank Guarantee is 
renewed from time to time and presently valid till 15th  June 2023.     

 III. )  Appeal against Order of Income Tax :      
 Income Tax Case - AY 2016-17 : Appeal filed with CIT( Appeal) against Order of AO passed U/s. 143(3) for 

disallowing Depreciation on Right of Way (being amount paid to Forest Department for regularisation of 
Forest Land) of   60 Lacs and raised demand of  . 30.40 lacs. Fresh submission made for completion of   
faceless Assessment. Order yet to be received from CIT (Appeal).     

 IV.)  Arbitration Case:      
  Arbitration Case with M/s. Pratham Integrated Engineering Solutions Private Limited:         
 M/s. Pratham Integrated Engineering Solutions Pvt Ltd (PIES), the Vendor for Installation of 3628 KWp Solar 

Power Plant at PMHBL Locations raised, following claims under Arbitration     
 I). . 57.86 Lakhs – within the scope of contract (deduction towards delay delivery)      
 ii). . 83.71 Lakhs – Outside the scope of contract      
 Both the claims are rejected by PMHBL; however, the Vendor has preferred arbitration which is in the initial 
stage. The claims/counterclaims yet to be ascertained, hence the liability is not ascertainable at present.  

Particulars
March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for (Net of advances if any)      315.96    587.81

March 31, 2022

V).  Capital Commitments 

Note 30 - Disclosures required for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Particulars
March 31, 2023

(I) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end 
of the accounting year   41.23   47.62 

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 
the end of the accounting year  -     -   

(iii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during the accounting year  -     -   

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006  -     -   

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of the accounting year   -     -   

(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006  -     -   

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified 
on the basis of information available with the company

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs 

  In lakhs 
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Note 31 - Corporate Social Responsibility        

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend 
at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social 
responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are promoting health care and sanitation, promoting 
education, employment enhancing vocation skills and livelihood enhancement project, promoting Women 
empowerment, promoting Environmental sustainability & conservation of Natural Resources and Promoting 
Rural Development.

A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were utilized through the year on 
the activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of Covid 19, greater 
emphasis was given during the year on eradicating hunger, healthcare and sanitisation.     

Breakup of amount spent during the year on CSR Activities

Particulars
March 31, 2023

1. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year,   181.00 232.16 

2. Amount of expenditure incurred 203.33 241.60 

3. Shortfall at the end of the year  -      -   

4.Total of previous years shortfall   -      -   

5.Reason for shortfall  NA   NA 

6. Nature of CSR activities :

Promoting  Heath Care & Sanitation    122.58   223.84

Promoting Education, Employment enhancing Vocational Skills and 
Livelihood enhancement Projects   71.07 6.26 

Administration Exp  9.68    11.50 

   203.33   241.60

March 31, 2022

  In lakhs 
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Note 32 - Operating Segments     
    
The Company has only one single reportable segment i.e. Transportation of Petroleum Products of Oil 
Marketing Companies (OMCs’).

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue from External Customers    
    Within India 14,177.64    10,289.26
    Outside India  -      -   

Non Current Assets
    Within India   15,571.41    15,880.08 
    Outside India   -      -   
    
Information about Major External Customers
    Major External Customer No. 1   7,098.52   6,641.54  
    Major External Customer No. 2   3,562.56    2,271.12  
    Major External Customer No. 3   3,052.22  836.78  

  In lakhs 
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Ratio

Current Ratio (in times ) Total Current Assets  Total Current Liabilities  26.64   30.19  -11.75%

Return on Equity* Net Profit after Tax- Average Shareholder's Equity 
 Preference dividend( if any)  14.57% 10.16% 43.37%
   
Trade receivable turnover  Revenue from operation  Average trade receivable    8.85   7.80  13.44%
Ratio( in times)
Trade Payable turnover  Other expenses Average Trade payable    8.09   7.56  7.07%
Ratio( in times)
Net Capital turnover Ratio   Revenue from operation  Average Working Capital 0.32   0.23  39.59%  
(in times)*  ( i.e. total current assets less
   total current liabilities) 

Net profit ratio in % Net profit after Tax  Revenue from operation  59.71% 58.50% 2.07%

Return on Capital  Profit before tax and finance  Capital employed = Net 18.84% 13.63% 38.24%
Employed (in %)* cost   worth + lease liabilities +  
  deferred tax liabilities 

Note 33-Interim Dividend      

The Company has declared and paid  1st Interim Dividend to Shareholder during the year 2022-23  @ Rs 0.56 
per  equity share totalling Rs, 3072.76 Lakhs out of surplus in Profit and Loss account as on 31.03.2022 and also 
paid 2nd  Interim Dividend to Shareholder during the year 2022-23 @ Rs 0.91 per  equity share totalling Rs. 
4993.23 Lakhs out of current year Profits .      

During the previous year 2021-22 , the Company has declared & Paid 1st Interim Dividend to Shareholder  @ Rs 
1.00 per  equity share totalling Rs, 5487.07 Lakhs out of surplus in Profit and Loss account as on 31.03.2021 and 
also paid 2nd  Interim Dividend to Shareholder  @ Rs 0.60 per  equity share totalling Rs, 3292.24 Lakhs out of 
the profit for FY 2021-22.      

Companies is required to pay /distribute dividend after deducting applicable withholding income taxes      

Note 34-Ratios   

      Denominator Numerator 
Current 

year  
Previous 

Year 
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Variance

 *Revenue growth and reduction in average shareholders equity due to distribution of dividend  has resulted in 
improvement in the ratios.

Note 35    
Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to those of the current year's 
classification.      

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.        

As per our report of even date attached

for YCRJ & Associates for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Chartered Accountants Petronet MHB Limited  
Firm Registration Number: 006927S     
 Sd/-  Sd/-   Sd/-     
 Poornima Y Mukundan V.M.  D. Adhikari
 Partner Managing Director  Director
 Membership Number: 212804 DIN: 09187238  DIN: 09667061 
  Sd/-  Sd/-    
  Chandan Kumar Das  Sachin Jayaswal
  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary     
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore  
Date : 24-04-2023 Date : 24/04/2023
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